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CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU 
GOVERNOR 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSIDRE 
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 
Concord, NH 03301 -3834 

Telephone: (603) 271-2155 
Fax: (603) 271-2615 

DIVISION OF PLANNING 

DIVISION OF ENERGY 

www.nh.gov/osi 

June 2, 2021 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Counci I 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 0330 I 

REQUE~Tlm /\CHON 

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to amend the Contract Agreement (Contract# I 07651 I) with 
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (VC # 177195), Berlin, NH, by increasing the contract amount by 
$346,320.00 from $364,0 12.00 to $7 I 0,332.00 for the Weatherization Assistance Program (W AP) effective upon 
approval of Governor and Executive Council, through June 30, 2022. The original contract was approved by 
Governor and Council on 06/24/2020, item #73. I 00% Federal Funds. 

Funding is available in the fo llowing account: 

Of'licc of' Strategic Initiatives, Fuel /\ssistnncc 
01-02-02-0240 I 0-77060000-074-500587 
Grants for Pub Assist & Relief 

EXPLANATION 

FY2021 

$346,320.00 

The U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) grant guidance (IO CFR 440.15) gives Community Action 
Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, the ir role 
providing a range of services to clients eligible for the Weatherization Assistance Program (W J\P), and thei r 
historical performance delivering the weatherization program 

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire' s statewide Weatherization Assistance Program, 
· funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to weatherize homes to reduce energy 
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that 
include people who are elderly, disabled, or children, and households with high energy usage. OSI contracts 
with New Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local level. 
OSI estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to New Hampshire wi ll contribute to the weatherization 
of approximately one hundred fifty-seven additional (157) homes in the State as a result of this funding. 

In the event Federal Funds are no longer avai lable, General Funds will not be requested to support this contract. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jared Chicoine 
Director 

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 
G&C 06/16/2 1 



OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

SUBJECT; WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (WAP) PY20 CONTRACT WITH
TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated May 10, 2021, is between the State of New Hampshire, Office of Strategic
Initiatives, 107 Pleasant Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as "OSI")
and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos County, NH 03570
(hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), Contract Number 1076511, as
approved by Governor and Council on June 24, 2020 (Item #73), the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement in consideration of payment by
OSI of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agrednent, the Agreement may be modified
or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval of such
modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and (

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in the
Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of A^cement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows:

A) Price-Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the
current sum of $364,0I2.00 'and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$710,332.00 wherever it occurs.

B) Time Extension: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking the
current completion date of June 30, 2021, and inserting in place thereof June
30, 2022, wherever it occurs.

C) Exhibit B - Scope of Services:
a. Amend Exhibit B, Item #2, by striking the current completion date of

June 30, 2021 and inserting in place thereof June 30, 2022 wherever it
occurs.

b. Amend Exhibit B, Item #4, by striking the current phrase "forty-four
(44) dwelling units" and inserting in place thereof "seventy-six (76)
dwelling units."

D) Exhibit C - Pavnient Terms:
a. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of

$364,012.00, the "Contracted Amount," and inserting in place thereof
the total sum of $710,332.00.

TCCAP WXN20 Amendment Contractor Initials: J
Grant: DE-EE0007935 " Date: S-H U
CFDA: 81.042 Pagcl of3



b. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of
$21,374.00 for Administration and inserting in place thereof the total
sum of $64,981.00.

c. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of
$25,558.00 for Training and Technical Assistance and inserting in
place thereof the total sum of $50,982.00.

d. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of
$12,174.00 for Health and Safety Measures and inserting in place
thereof the total sum of $6,735.00.

e. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of
$304,906.00 for Program Activity and inserting in place thereof the
total sum of$587,634.00.

2. Continuance of A^eemcnt. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms and
Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full force
and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it existed
immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF NEW^H7«^PSHIRE
Office </[ Strategic Initiatives

By:
/4arcd Chicoine, Director

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

By; ^
Randall Pilotte, CFO

State of Kly
County of Coc^ "" '" 7^

On this Jq^!lday of . 2021. before me.rW\£>Kwai Hhr\ Y\ - .
the undersized officer, personaffy appeared who acknowledged
himself/herself to be therVtve^- r)^W g:^f Tri-Countv Community. Action Program. Inc.: a
corporation, and that he/she being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the
purposes contained therein

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand

ot

CHft(STIWA P4pRIN.'jj[oiafy Public
oM^ew Hampshire

the ' 9.2023
My Commission expires:

TCCAP WXN20 Amendment Contractor Initials:

Grant; DE-EE0007935 Date:
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Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE ORT^^TORNEY GENERAL

Assistant Attorney General

Date: [0/1 /-ZOZ)
I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on. . . 2021.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By: . ■ ■

Title:

TCCAP WXN20 Amendment Contractor Inidals;

Grant: DE-EE0007935 Date:. —■
CFDA:81.042 'Page 3 of 3



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State ofihe State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify thaiTRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18,1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secreiar>'of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Busirtess ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 000S362631

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5lh day of May A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Sandy Alonzo. . . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected ChairA/lce Chair/ Secretary of _Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. .
(Cotporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 29th . 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard, CEO; Randall Pilotte, CFO_ (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program. lnc._ to enter into contracts oragreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. Ifurther certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidenice that the person(s) listed above cunently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: S ' ID'2J^2^1
Signature of ElweaOffice'r ̂
Name: Sandy^^nzo
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATEIMMrDOrmY)

' 01/260021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A HATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATC HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTfTI/TE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING iNSUR£R(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCQL AND THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER. ̂

IMPORTANT If the eertlficste holder le en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(lee) must have ADDmONAL INSURED provfsiens or be eitdorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain poOciee may require an endoraement A atatement on
this certincale does not confer rights to the eertiricats holder In Oeu of such endOfaement(o).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Msnchester HH 03101

Andrea Hiddto

anlclcfr>Oeroeae9ency.cofe

■tSURSRtt) AFFOftOOte COVEIULCE NMCS

BnitoFRA: PhiiadolpMa Indemniiy Ins Co 18056

eiSURED

Tri-County Community Action Proorem. Inc
30 Exchenge Street

Berlin NH 03570

iwttfTtEfiP- Granlto Stele Health Care and Human Services Seir-
BtSURERC;

BISUREXO:

mSURCRe:

INSURER F:

LTH

THS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCES OF WSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE NSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERKX>
INDICATED. NOTWrTHSTANDWG ANY REQUBIEMEWT. TERM OR CONOmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CSniFJCATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAW. THE WSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE P0UCIE6 DESCRBEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AJ.L THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLCCS. UMTTS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAJD CLAWS.

^  PBDCTBtrHuevtF*: UMTTBTYPCOrWSUItANCe POUCY NUMBER.

COMMERCIAL OQIERAL UABBJTY

. . 1 ClAMSJUDE OCCUR

CgWVAOOReCATEULBTAPPUgSPet:

POLCY n JOT n
OTHER:

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
MRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHKULED
AUTOS
NONOWN^
AUrOSONLV

PHPK21S0056

PHPK2150060

YMMfDO/YYYY>

07/01/2020

07/01/2020

IMMffiC/rYYYI

07/01/2021

07/01/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
PAUAUIUHLNTBT
PREMBESlEjccewftMti

M£DE>ytAnyon>pw»oi')

PER80NN. A AOV MJURV

CENBULA60REGA7E

PR00UCT8 • COMPfOPAOG

,«UaigBSNai£LMT
C«»BddMU

eOOAY MA/RY (Pv ptnon)

60OB.Y KAIRY <Pw ■iXfcMnO

htOKAT/GUJAGE ~

UndarlRSUfBd molorisi

1,000,000

100,000

6.000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3.000,000

t 1,000,000

• 1.000,000

X

UMBRELLA UAB

CXCCMUAS

OCCUR

CLABtSAIADE PHU8728178
EACH OCCURRENCE

2.000,000

07/01/2020 07/01/2021 AOOREQATE 2,000.000

060 IX RgTENTlON $ _
WORKERS COMPCMSATION
AND CMPLOTERr UABO/TY y/N
AW PROPfUETORIFlWrTNEROEamVE
OFFCCWUEMBER EXCUnEO?
(MmdMwylnNH) 0

3STATUTE
I 6th.'
ER

HCHS20210000426 (3«.) NH 02/01/2021 02A)1/m22 EJ.EACHACOOEKT I 1,000.000

EL. OSEASE • EA BIPIOY^ 1.000,000

am, flwciBtunS*
OESCRPTiPMOFOPERATIOWSbMow Ei. DISEASE - POLICY UMTT 1,000,000

ProtatslonM LiBblllty PHPK2150055 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

Each OccuRBnc*

AggfBgsto

1.000.000

3,000,000

OeSCRtPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLE* (ACORS Id. AtfttOMl RMMriw SrtwASt. ntf b* MMclwS H i

Rofsr to poOcy for exdusienaxy •ndorssmants and special provisions.
Of* ipM* M rnMrvS)

NH OfncaofStratsgic Inltlstives
107 Pleasant Street

Johnson Hatt

Conconi NH 03301
■1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCMBED POUCCB BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRAnON DATE THEREOF. NOTKE WU. BE DCLIVE RED M
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATWC

ACORD 25(2016/03) The ACORO name and logo tro regtBtared marks of ACORD



•Christopher T. Sonwu

Governor

June 1,2020

JUN08'20An 9:34 DftS

STATE OF NEW HAMPSfflRE
Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pteasam Sireei, Johnson Hall
Concord. NH 03301-3834

Telephone: (603) 271-2155

Fox:(603) 271-2615

Divis

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Suniinu
and the Honorable Council

Stale House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

73
ion of Pianning

Division of Energy

www.nh.gov/osi

APPROVED BY GOVERNOR

& COUNCIL ON: 6/24/2020

AGENDAITEM: #73
P0#1076511

REOUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Office oFStratcgIc Initiatives (OSI) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-
Counly Community Action Program, Inc. (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of $364,012.00 for the
federal Wcalhcrization Assistance Program (WAP) effective July 1, 2020, upon approval of Governor and
executive Council, through June 30, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request arc anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2021 upon
avaiiability'and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

Office of Siratecic Initiatives. I^w Income Wcatherizalion FY 2021

01 -02-02-024010-77060000-074-500587

Grant for Pub. Assist & Relief $364,012.00

2) Further request authorization to advance to the vendor $60,982.00 of the abovc-rcfcrenccd contract
amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Wcatherizalion Assistance
Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clicnls eligible for the
Wcatherizalion Assistance Program (WAP), and their hislorical performance delivering the wcatherizalion
program.

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Wcatherizalion Assistance Program,
funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to wcathcrize homes to reduce energy
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that
include people who arc elderly, disabled, or children, and households with high energy usage. OSI contracts
with New Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide wcalhcrization services at the local level.
OSI estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to Now I lainpshirc will contribute to the wcatherizalion
of approximately two hundred and two (202) homes in the Slate.

The requested advance of funds will enable Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. to operate the
program between monthly reimbursements from the State, and may only be used for allowable program
expenses as detailed in Exhibit C.

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
C&C 06/24/2020



His I:xccllcncy, Governor Chrisiophcr T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

June 1,2020
Page 2 of 2

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
.contract.

RespecljikWy^bmiltcd,

"  \

Jared Chicoinc

Director

Attachments

C&C 06/24/2020



FORM NUMBER F-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: Titis agtefmCTt and.all of its iBitachmcnts shall becomc fwblic upon submission to Cbvemor. ahd
Ex'ecutiycXpuncil for approval. Any-inifonnaiion thai' is pri\'alev.c6nndcntial;Of'pr6pncvary mu.si
be clearly identified io-ihc:ager>cy ,and agreed lo 'in uTiiihg prior io signing the contract.

agreement

The StaicoTNcw Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually:afiree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Stale-Agency Name
Office of Strategic Initiatives

1.2, Suie Agency Address
1.07 Plca.tani Street, J6hiison!Hali

Cbricbril, New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri-County Gbmmuniiy. Action Program: inc.
1.4- Contractor Address.

30.:Exchange Street. Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 Contractor.Phbne

Number

(603) 752-700:i

1.6 Accouni'Nuthber'

01 ̂■2^2^24010.770.60.000-
500587

1.7 Completion Date
Juiie.30..20.2.l

1.8 Price Lin\iiation
S3$4.0t2:00

1.9 Conu^cting Officer rpr.Siaie" Agency
K.irt( Stone", Wtrathenzatioh-ProgiiLrn Manager

I.IO State AgcneyTelcphonc Niimbef
(603)2?|.2I55

l.ll Conti^prSit^tiirc f\ 1.12 Namc-and Title ofGonira"cior .Stgnaipo'
Jeanne Robillard, CEO

1.13 Siatc Age'nb^i'^atur^ 1.14 NaoK-and Titlc-of Staic Agcntiy Sigiiatbr)'

Clc'-CO(^e .
h.,la/Approyal"by ihe;W:FT".""Dep,ahmcnt oi Adniinistnttion.-Ciivisipn of Perspnncj (i/'oppHcable)-

t  By. Director, On:

f.l6 Approval by the.Atloniey General fPorm, Sub.siancc'and Execulipri) (■(/■rtpp/zcdA/e) .

y'^-^/zaZo
\ 7 -^prqs-al by the Govenxjr and ExecutTve.GouiKil (i/o'pplicohle)

GfiiC Item number; G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Gdniracibr Initials

iJate



2, SERVICES TO BK, PERFORMED, The Siaic of New
Hampshire, acting through ihe agency ideniincd in .block' 1.1
C'Staie"), engages cpritractor Idcniificd in block, r.3'
("Cpniractor^ lo.porlphii.-and thc.Controctor shall.'perronn, the
work or sale of goods;, or both, identified-,and: more.panicularly-
descni^ .in. (he atiflched. EXHIBIT B which, is incorporaied-
hcrcjii^by reference"("Scryiccs").

3; EFFECTiyE DATE/COMPLETION OFSERVIGES.
3.1 NblwHihsiahaihg any provision of. (his .Agreerncni'10 (he
cotttrary; and .subjcci to die appro.val of the Govcntor- and
ExecutivCvCouncil of.thc State of Nc.w.Hampshire, if applicable,
thisAgtecmeni; ahd;Bll pbliga'tions of ihe.partics hcrcunder,..<thali
bwomc efreciiyc Oh the date (he Governor and. Executive
Council itpprove this Agreement as. indicated in'block 1.17,
unless ho s.iii^ uppro.vidi is.rcquiied. th whi.ch..case (he Agreement
shall bccoihe efTectivc on.iKe <^ie the A^eement isrsigned by
the Stntc Agenfcy a.vshpwn;in block;l.l3 C'EfTcctive.Paie").
3..2. If (he Cpriiracior, conim.cnccs. the, Services' prior io the
Effective bate, all Sertfic^s pe'rfpnned by the Contractor prior to
the-EfTcc.t'ivc .Datc-sHaJ.l be Rctfpfimed.at the. spic risk of the
Contractor, and in'die eyent.'that.'th.is A'grDcntent.does not become
efTeciive, the Sta.te shall haveyiip liability, to, the-Qontractor,
iricluding uiihout. Hmita.libti; any .ob.ligation. (p pay the
Gbntracior for aiiy- co^'s incurfcd .of- S.eftyiccs performed.
Contractor: must'cpmplete all Service by ite.Compleiioh Date
specificd-in block I .-7.

f. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEM ENT.
Notwithstanding any proyii^'iph ;of this Asfc.cmerit to. the:
contrary, all obligations of-the Stale;'Hcreund^,. ihcludihg,
without limitation, the contininnce of paymentf hc'reunder^ are
contingent upon the,availability and 'cohtih^'.Bpp;ropoatio^
fundSiafTecied by any state'. Or federal legLsla'iive. or executive
-action (hat. reduces; eliminates or -oihenylse .m|^in» the
.appfopn'aiion or availabtiily of rundtng.'forThis'.AgrcetfKm and
the. Scope for Scrvnccs provided.'in-^HlBIT B; 'in wh'qle.pr'iin
pan. In no event shaill the'State be. litije'fpr a'riy pa'yinents
hereunder in exces.sof such.available-appropriated iands.- in the
event ofa reduction or-termination of app'ropri.a'ted ^hds, 'the
.State shall havC'theirighi'to-wiiKhold paymcnt.until .^H.iVnds
become available; if ever,--and ̂ 11 have the right to..raduce or
tcnninaie-'ihc.Scrviccs.undcr ihis.Agrecment.immcdiatdy upph
giving (he Cbniractor. noiiccvof .suchnaduction or lermi.natipn.
Th.e/Sia(e-shall not .be required to transfer .fundis hrom any-other
account or source to ihe Account ideniiined.in bl^k l .6-.in ih'e
cyent;funds in that-.Account are reduced or. unavailable.-

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICEXIMITXTION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The cohirfci price, methodofpaymcni; and terms of payment
arc ide.niified and -more pariicularly. described in EXHIBIT C
which .is incorppraicd hcrcln.by.referencc.
5:2 The payment by the'Stale-of-ihc contract price shall be .ihe
only and.;ihc complete reimbursement to the.-Contractor for dll:
expends, of whatever nacuta incurred by (he Contractor .ih the.
.performance hcreo.f, and shall be the .only and (he completc

compensation lb. the Gonira'cior for tl>e S.crvices. The State sliall
have no l^bijiiy'.io the Cdn^cior other than the con'traci.price.
5.3 The State res.ciVcs the-H^it'.to .ofTsct from any amounts
bihcrwise.pq'yable l.o'thc Cqhiracior uhdei^ this Agreement lho.se
liquidated amounts'required or Rwmitted ̂ by'N.H. RSA 80:7
ihrqit^-RSA 80:7-c or any other pfpyision of.law.
5'.^ Notwithstanding 'any. provision in this .Agreement' to the
contrary, notvyithsiariding imexpcctcd circ.umsianccs, in.no
event sliall the'toial pfall.paymen.tsauthbrizedi.orac'titany.made
hereunder; exceed."the Price Liin.ltaiibh. set forth in block l.fi..

6. COMPLiANCE BV CONTRACTOR M^ITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNm'
6.1 In connection with the pe.rfqnna.ricc of'the. .Scrviccj?, the
Contractor shall comply with,-all applicable statutes; laws,
regulations, and orders of fedcriil;. state; county .p'r inunicipal
authorities which impose any obligation, or .duty iipbn "the
Coniracior, including,- but- hot limited (0,-ci.yil nghis and equal
cmploymcnt.oRportunity laws. In Mdit.ibrii'if.lhis -Agreement is;
funded in any. pan by monies of the'United Siaicis, ili CcKiiractor
•shalixomply wiih-all federal.executive otdcre; rules; regulalioris;
and statutes, and wi(h'ariy'ruic;<i, regulBUbn.vhn'd giiidcUnes'as (he.
State or the United States issue to im'plcinferii Ih^-regulalibhs,..
The-Contracior shall also comply with all 'appHc'ab'ie iht'cHectua.! ■
property laws.
6.2 During the term of.this -Agreement,.the ebrijractq.r.^ll-nqt
discriminate agaiast employees'or applicants -for qn'ployinent
because of race, color, religion, creed,- agq .w-, h.bndicap;.Mxual
oricniaiion, or-naiional origin:-and'will,take afTlnna.li.v'ep^io'h'tO
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The "Coniracior agrees to permit the State ;pr>Uhi^ S.taics
-access io;any of the Gontraciorls books, records and accowis for
(he. purpose of.'a.scenaining compHiancewiihall rules,- regijjaiions
and orders, and, the covenanLs, terms arid, condition-of-Ais
Agreenkni.,

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at iLs-.own expense providc'all personriei
necessary to perform the Services. Thc^Goniracior warranis that
all, .personriei engaged in the Services^ shairbe quaiified to
p'erfpitn the Se^ices; and shall-'be properly licensed' and
otherwise authorized io.-db.sounder.all opplicable.lavvs.
7.2, Unless otherwise, authorized in. writing; iduring' the term.'of
lhi.s Agrecmcni. and for a- period of six (6J months after the
Cbtn'pleiiohiD.ate'in block 1.7, (he Coniroctor shall not-'hire, and
shall not 'petmit. any subcontractor or other person; firm .or
cofporaiioii wit.h, whom- it is. engaged'.in B'xonibined! efTort -to
pcrfomi the S.eivicc$.t6'hir^,:Bny person who is:a--Siatc employee
or ofTlcial, vyhp is''.materi.ally- .involved Jn the-procurement,
pdinini.s^i.ici.n q'r p^o'rrhance of this-; Agreement. This
provision shall ̂uf\;i.vi5 te'nninatio.h ofthis.Agreemcnt..
7".3 Th'e Conl.racti'n'g'.Officer specified in block-, r.9, or his or her
•successor, shall be the State's 'representative. In,the:eyent of any
dispute corvcemmg the i'mcrpre.iBti'on of this Agreement; ihe
•Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for ihe-Siatc.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1. Any one or more of ihc following acts or omissiorus-of llic
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcreundcr ('••Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 faihirt" to perform the. Services saUsfactorily or ;on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder--and/or
1.3 fpilure ib peHprm tuiy other covenant, term or condition of

this Agreement.
8..;2 Upon jhe occurrence of any-Event of Default, the State may
take liny one; or more, or all, of the. following actibns;
8.-2.1, give the Conihicio.r a written'notice specifying ihc.Eyeni of
Default and requiring.it to'be remedied within, in'ihc absence of
a; greater or leiwcr specification,of time, tliiiiy (3,0) .days from the
date'of Ihenoiice; and if ihe'Evehiof Default is:rtot timelyciircd,
lenniniatfe this Agrecihcht, eTreciivc iwo (2).days after giving the
ConuBcior notice of temt'ihat.ibh;
8:2.2 giire the Conlricto/ a 'wrilten;noticc.spccifyingahc Event of
Default and suspending all pa>mcrits to be made tirtder ihis-
Agreemeitl and ordering that the porljoh of ihe.cqbtract price,
which uipijld other>vi.se accrue, tq the 'Contractor, during (he
period from (he date-'of such notice until such time as (he.State'
determines that the, Cbnira'ctbr has cured the Event,6f Default

•shall never be'paid to die Cqniractor;
8.2.^3 give the Contracior'a (vritteri ri6tice;^)ecifyingjhe'Eyctit of
Ocfuuh aixl set off'agpinsi any other obligaiionslthe Staje may
owe (o'the Contractor anydamagcs ihcState stj.fferaby'reasp.nof
arty Evcni.of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the ContractorU'writien notice_speclfyjn'g:thc,E\Tni of
Default, treat the Agrcerhcnt 'its' breached, >terihinale (He
Agrecmcnirand pursue'any of its rernedics'.oi law'or in equity; 6r
both.

'8.3'..No failure by the Slate'-lb enfoitC'priy..prbvisibn.s Kerecif'aftcir
any 'Evcnt of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights wijh
regard, (b that Event of-Default; or any subMqu'ent Event qf
Default. No expres-sfailure'lb enforce any Ev'enf^dfOefaulilshidl '
be^.dccn^ed a waiver ofthe.righi of the Sraie to eiifprce'eachrand
sill of (he provisions hereof.upon any further .or'other Everit of
D.c&ult.onilte part of (he Conlraclor.

9. terminaTiDn.
9.1 Notvqihsianding paragraph 8; (he State may, at its sole.
discreiion,.teTmiiute;ihc, Agreement for any reason, in'u'hqle or
in pan, by ihiny (30) days written noticc to ihc Coniriicior'ihat-
the Slate is exercising its option to terminate the' Agreemerit'.
9.2, In (he event .of on early icrmination.of this Agrecmem for
any reason other than (he completion of the' Services, the
Contractor shall, at. the State's discretion, deliver to the

C.qhtraclihg OfTicer, not later.'than nflcen.( 15).days after the daie<^
of terinibaiion, :a report ("Termlnai'ibn Rcport"-)'dcscribing in
detail.all Services performed', and the contract price:camed,-to.
and includingjhc disic of (crmtnatibn. The-form, subject matter,
cb'nYe'rii, and number ofcopiesiofthe Termination Report'shall
be idcntiiul.ib tho^ of any Final Report.described in ihc attached
E!xHlBlf 'B..ln addition, at (He State's discretion. the'Coniracior
shall, 'within 15 days of notice of early teniiinaiion..dcvelop and

submit to the Stai,e a Transitibn Plan for. ser\'i,ces'.under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVAtlON:
id. I As used In (his Agreerneni,.ihe wprd"data" shall mean all
information and lhthg.<; developed or obtained during t}>c
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of..!hi.s
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all sitidies, reppriis,
files, formulae, survey^ maps, charts, so'uiid rcjxtnJings, yidPo
recot^ings, pictorial reproduciibris, drawings,.analyses,'graphic
representations, computer progrants,,computer printouts; notes.,
letters, mentoranda, papers^ and documeniS;'a1l wKeihcr
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any proper^ which ha.<( been received from,
the State or purcha.red-wiih -funds provided for thai p'urppse
.under this'Agreement, shall be the property of (he'State, ar^
shall be returned lb the State upon ̂ mand^or upon termination
•ofthis Agreement for any rca.'ton.
1.0.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed byN.H. RSA
chapter 91- A or other existing law. Disclosure ofdata're'quires
prior .written approval of the Stale.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO.THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement (he Contractor is in all respects
an- independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the. Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees,.agcnts.'or members .shall have authority to
bind the.State or receive any benefits, woriccrs' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Statejo its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACfiS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
intcr^j in this.Agrcement without'the prior wriiten noiice,which
shall, ̂  pF6vidcd'lb:.t])C Stale at .least fifiecn (IS)'days prior to
(he assi{pimehi,.8rid'8 tvriitcn consent of'the S(a(e..porpurposes
of (hii paragraph, a Change of Control: shall constitute
assigiiment.. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
cqhsplidatibn,.or a iransaciion or series of.related traasactions in'
which a third par^', together with its affiliates, becomes ;lhc'
direct or indirect owmcr of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting $hares or sirnilar eqiiity iriieresis; or combined voting
[power of the Co'ntiactbr, or(b)'ihe sale of all or substantially all
•of the; assets' of the.Qontracior.
12.2 Noitc of (he Services shall be subcontracted, by the.
Goniria'ctof without prior written n6(ic.e;and,coh»ni of the.State.
the Stpje is entitled to cbp'ies of all hibcqniriicis and assigntnerit.
agreements and shall nbi,^.;bpurid by aiiyprovisiotu contained,
in B'subcontract or'ah assignment agreement to .which it is-noi a'
party.

.I3.;INDEMNIF1CATI0N. Unless qihciwisc exempted,by. lawi
the Gomra'ctqr shalj indehinify and hold haririletis the State, its
officers and empioyee.s, from and against any qnd [all .claims,
liabilities and costs for.any pcrsoriai injury; or pfqperty damages;
patent or copyright infringement, or other claiiii; e'S5cncd.againsV
Ihc State, 'it.s officers or employees. which'.ariM bin of (or 'whjch
may be claimed to arise oiJi qO the acts or omission of the
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Contniclpr, of'SiibMhiraciprs, including but. not.-iinViied. lo the
negligence; recklc^ or iniuttipiul conduct. The S.late shall not
be liable" for anycpsis inclined by the Contractor arisi.ng .under
thisparagraph 13.'N6tvdih'si^.ding-;tKe foregoing, npthinghfreih
comain^'shall be deei^d lo^cohstitute.a waiver of the so.vereign
iihmuniiy of the,Stale, vyhlcltiiTimuniiy is. hereby rcscfvcd.'to the
State. This cpvcnani in paragraph 13 shalj survive tlie
(erniihatipn of this Agreenteni.

14. INSURANCE.;
M.-] The Cpntracior :shai)i at its; .sole e.tpense, obtaih and
continuously maintain iri fo'rpei and shall, require; any
suboontracior, or assignee to obra'in .and maihiain in force, the
following insiirance;
14:1.1 comjiterciaj general liabiiiiy in.<unm'ce against all claims
of bodily. injur>'. death or propeny (^mage, in qhSourits of not
less than -S I .OCiO.OOO pfif dc.cufrenc.c and .$2,000,660 agglregate;
or excess; and
14. 1t2-special cause of loss-cpvcrage fprni cbvering'alj propeii'y
subject to'subparagraph 10.2 Kcie.in/'in an 'ainpunt' ik>t-!|cSs-th^
80% ofihe whole replacement vralue pf'ihe propcny.
1.4.2 The poiiaes'described.in"!»bparagra'ph;l.4.1 herein shajl be-
on policy fPrms and.endorsemenLs'appro%^<for ii^'in the.State.
of New-Hampshire by the N.H. Depanmcnt of .Insurance, 'and
issued-by .insurers licensed in the State of New Hantpshi're:
1.4.3 Tte Contractor shall furnish to the .Contracting Oi^cer
•identified in block- i;9, or'his or.hcr-succcssor, a.cen.ificate(s) of
linsurance for all. insurance required- under this A'greemeriL
Contractor shall also-fumish to.ihc.Contraciitig Officer idehtiiled-
ih block.1.9; or his or. hersuccessor, certificatefs) of'insurance'
-forail rcnewal(s) of insurance required underihis.Agreemeni hd
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificaicf.s) of insurance and. any
-renewals.'thereof sl)all.be;attachcd'and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORRERS' COMPENSATION.
I'S.I -By-signing this agreement, ihe 'Cbniracior agrees^ cenifies
ahd.u'arnnts that lite Contractor is in compliance:wiih.or exempt
from,.ihc requirements orNiH..RSA.chapter"28l-A {"Workers"

15.2; To 'the extcnt-lhc Contracior. i.s;.subjeci to the requirements
of N.H, RSA chapter 28.1rA, Contractor shall maimain,. and
rc'quira any subcontractor or assignee ;to secure and maintain,,
payment of" Workers' Compensation in connection with
dcii.viiies'.whjch the pcirson.proposes'to undertake pursuant to. this
Agreemchi. TheCootractor.shall furnish the Contracting Officer
i.dchiificd-in'blQ'ck. 1.9, or HiS:.or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation, in. the .nianncr described" in N.H. RSA ".chap'tcr
:28l*A:ahd any .applicabl.e mewaKs)'.(hereof, which shall be
attached'and arc ihcb'rporeted herein, by-.reference. 1'he Slate
shall .npi .be. responsible for payment, .of any Workers'
Cpmpensatiph premiums-or- for any pthef Plaim o.r bpnefii- for
Cpntra'cto^ of any .sutkiPntractpr of cihplbyee of Conifacibf,
which rnjgKt; oriM under applicable S.late Of'.New ".Hampshire
Workers' • (tompensa'ljon, laws- In .conltectioh with the
perforhiajicC'Of the Seivices" under thi.VAgreemchi;

1'6. NOTIC-E.-Any noiicc by a party hereto .to the other party
shall be dcemedilo have.becn'dul'y delivered orgi.ven at the time
ofmailing by certified.mail,.postage prepaid, in a UhitedfSia(e.s
Post Office addres-sed-to the parties ai ihe addr^es given in
blocks .1.2..and 'l';4, herein.

17..AMENDMENT. This Agreemcni moy be amended; waived
or disch'arged.-onty by an.iiis'trument'- in- MTiiing signed by the
parties hereto and only .after .approval of-such amendment,,
.u'aiverpf diKharge.^by lhe;Co.yemor; and Executive;Council.of
ih'e S.talc of New Hampshire unless :no such approval is required
luider (he circumstances pursuant to Stale law, rule or policy.

1,8. CHOICE OF LAW AND. FORUM. This kgreemeni shall
be ;govp'rn^,.interpreted.and construed in accordartce. with the
la'ws of'ihe- State of Ncw'.Hampsh'ire, and is binding upon and-
mufPS'tb.the benefit of (he, p'anies-and .their resp^tiye.successors
and .assigns... The wpi^ing used in this Agreement is the wording
chpSen'.by'thc partieS-tp express their rn'utual ihien.t,..8nd.ho niie;
.of cp'ruifuction shall applied, against Pr in/avor.of.an.y pariy.-
Ahy'-actipasjarising ou.t .pf (hif-Agrce.ment shall bc.-brpught. and
mainiajncd in Ncw Ha'mRshi'fC Siip.e'ripr Court which sKa.ll.ha.yc'
exduSiyc junsdictioh.thereof."

I?. CONF.LICTING TERM.S. In the eycn.i of'a c'Ph'nic.t
betw-ec'ri. th.c.iernfs of this. .fprnt (as modified.in EXHIBIT
A) a'nd/pf ail8chmchtsi.and-amcn.d.mcnt;"thw 'thc:.tcrTiw of iJic
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall conifbl.

■20. THIRD PARTIES; The pa'fiies hcretP do not", ihtend ip
•benefit any third pa'rties and .(his Agfeemehi, sKall .nqi be
cpnsuucd (o.confcr any such benefit'.

•21. HFaDINCS. The headings-throughout.ih'e Agrce'rnwt ait^
for reference purpose.? pn!y,-.aiid the words cphlamed ,the.fem
shall in no way be hefd-tp explain, nipdify, amplify pr eid in the.
inien^relation; construction or meaning-'orthe prbvisipnis bf'tjiis
.Agreement.-

22.. SPECIAL PRpVlS'lONS. Addjtiona.l Pr ."mp^lfyihg
provisions secfonh in the attached ^HIBIT Aareii'ncprpprated
herein by reference.

■23. SEVERABILITV. .In the event any ofihe.proviiions of this
Agreement-art held by a.court-of coinpeieni jiiriSdicfipn.tp bp
contrary, to. any state or Tederet lkw,-the remaihing provisions of
(his Agreemeni;\vill remain inTull force and effect.

-24i. ENTIRE.A'CREEMENT. This Agreement, -which may be,
e.<(ecuted in'a nunibcr of counterparts, each, of-which shall be.
deemed ao original,- consiiiuies the. entire agreement and-
undcrsianding bet%veen the pmies, and supersedes: all prior
agreements and.undersiandings with respect to the subject matter
h'crcpr.!
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform. Admintsiraiivc.Rcquircnienis, Cost Principles, and.Audit Requirements for
Federal AwardO. IO CFR 440 dated February I,,2002 (Wcaihcrizalion Assistance Program), the New
Hampshire Weatheriza|ipn Assistance Program.State Plan, Weathcrization Assistance Program Policies and
Procedures, and Field Guide are all considered legally binding and enrprccable-docuinents underthis
contract . OS] reserves the righi.to-use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to,
disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension of agency personnel,.disbaniient. of agency
personnel, disbarment of agcncics and/or subcbntraclors from present or future conlractSj and such other
legal rcmcdiiesas determihcd to be •appropriate by the New Hampshire Department of justice in the

enforcement of rules and regulations pe^aihin'g to the Weatherizaiion Assistance-Program.

2. An audit shall be mado at the end orthe;Contraclor*s.fiscal year in accordatice with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F -

Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expeiidilufes' by
contract of grahtnumbef of all expenditures during ihe Coniracipr's fiscal year. The .Contractor shall
utilize a competitive bidding process.fo choose a qualified financial auditor at le^t/every four ye^.

The audit report shall jncludie a schedu|.C'or prior year's questioned costs along wiih'a response to ihe curreni
status of the prior yearns questioned costs. Copies oT-all management leilers wriiten..8s a.result of the audit.,
along'with the aud.it-report shall be fo'rivarded foOSI within one month of the umeiof-rcccipt by.ihe
Cohiractbr accompanied by on.aclion plan, if applicable,'for each finding or'queslioncd.-c.osl.

3. The fpllowing paragraph shall be-addcd lo-paragraph 9 of the general provisions;'

"9.4 All negotiated contract.s (excepi'thpsc of SS^OOO or less) awarded by the'Subgrantee>shall:allow OSI,
OOE, (lie Cbmpi'rollerOeneral of the Unitcd 'States, or any dulyauthorizcd rcpresentative.S'..acces.s:to-any
books, documents;paper$, .and records of the .Subgraniee or their subcontractors, .which.are direcily
pcrtiii'cnt td.ihe Weatherization Assistance Program for the purpose of making audits^ .exam.inatlbhs,
excerpts and transcriplipn.'*

4. In paragraph 10 of the.general provisions, the followihg sentence shall be deleted': "THe'forrii, subjeci-ina'tter,
cpmeTtt,and..humbe.r of copies oflheTerminaiioh-.Rcport shall be identical to.those o.fanyFjnal Report
described in EXHIBIT A."

.5. The costs charged under (his contract shall bc determined as allowable'under the'0st principles detailed in 2-
GFR 200 Subpan E - Cjosi,Principles.

6. Program-and financial.records pertaining to this-contfact shall be,reiained by the Cohtracior for 3 (three)
years.ffomthe.datc,of submission of the final expenditure report or, for award.s ih'at are-'renewcdqua^crly 6r-
annually, from'ihe.'date of ihe.su.bmissl.on of ihe^quart.crly or annual financial report, as slated in 2 CFR
200.333 - Rcichtioh.Rcquiferhcnts for Records.

7. Kirk Stone, Weatherizatioh .Prdgrani.Manager of OSI, has been designated with ihc'rcsppnsibiliiy for
overseeing (his conlrecl;
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-8'.- the.rpllowing paragraphs sliall be added to the genera! provisions:

"25. RESTRICTION QN ADDITIOI^AL FUhJDING. It i,s understood and agreed between jhcparties that
no portion of the "Grant" funds, may be used for .the purpose ofoblaining^additional Federal funds
under any oihcr lawbf the United Slates,.except if aulhorizcd under that law."

■■26. ASSURANCES/CERTrPlCATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Certification Regarding
Drug-Free WoTkploc.c Reqiiiiicmcnis; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding
Debarmem, Suspension and Other Responsibility M.aiters; Certification Regarding the .Americans With;
Disabilities .Act Compliance; Certi.ficaii.bn .Regarding.Ehvirohinentai Tobacco. Sniokc; Assurance.of
Compliance Nondiscriminotion,in.Federally Assisted Progrants; and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability-and Transparency Compliance.

"27. COfeland ANTI-KICKDACK ACT. All contracts and subgrafits in excess of 12,0.00.00 for
constructionior repair shall include a provision for compliance with Copeland "Antl-fCtckback!' Act (.18
U.SG 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3T This Act provides
that each contractor, subcontract or-subgranlce shall be prohibited from inducing', by ..any means, any
person crnplpycdiin ihc construction, pomple'i.bn or repair-bf.public w.ortc, to gl.ve up.ahy pan of the
compensation to which he .is oihci^vise.xntitled. The subgraniee should feport;a|.l.su5pccied-viola(ions'

,  toOSI."

"28. PROCUREMENT. .Subgrantcc shall cpmply with all prbyjs.lbnsof 2 CFR 200 Subpart D- Post"
Federal AwaitI Requirements.- Procurement.Standards, with special emphasis on financial
procurement.( 2 GFR .26p Subp.art^F - Audit Requirements) and property mahagcnicht (2 CER 200
Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards)"

"29. CLOSE QU.T QF CONTRACT; All final rcquircd rcpori's and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the Slate \vithiri sixly (60idaysof the cbniplctioh date (Agreement' B.ioick"1.7-)."

Exhibits A. 0
Initials''•MV

Page *2 of-5
Award flDE-eEiX)07935. CFDA #81.042



EXHrBtlTB

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Tri-Cbun'ty.Community Aclibn Programjbc,, hcrcinaficr'ihcCon'raclbr"or'•Subgranicc,"-agrees lo
pcrib.rm weatherizaiipn'scn'iccs and all additional services and other work necessary lo-prpvide
Wcblherization Assistance Program (WAP) services to eligible Ipw income individuals in accordance with
the regulations seijorth by the tJ. S. Department of Energy in lO.CFR 440 doled February I, 2002, and In 2
CFR 200 as amended, and in accordance with the provisions and procedures contained in the mosi recent.
New Hampshire Wcathcrization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, Policies mid.Proceduits Manual,
Field Guide,.and as oihcrwlsc admihisicrcd by the OfFl.ce of Strategic Iniliailvcs (OSI)-

Periodically OSI may issue Subgrantee Guidance (SO) ond.SubgrHnicc.Noiic'cs (SN),or oiher claririca'tions as
necessary, All such changes shall be ednsidcrcd as incdrporaied Into the NH Wcaiherizaiion Pojicies and.
Prpccdures.Manual and Field Guide.- The Contractor agrees to alter the Program'procedures-In.accordance
with a SO, SN or other instructions.

TTie Subgrantee agrees to abide by change jh the hlH Weatherizaiion Assistance Program designed to
improve prbgriim deliver); and.funhcr a^^ to pcrform Wcatherizaijon Prograni services in a niahnerthai
will successfully int.cract with utility admin.islcrcd cncigy efficiency programs for low-income hpusdhPlds in
order to prdvldc'thc best scrx'iccs for New Hampshire's low-income households.

2. The contract period, lo be known as Prograni Year 2020 (PY20), will cbihmcncc on July I, 2020, and will
have.a completion date of June 30.2021, subject lo'the approval of Governor and Bxecuti.ve Council.

3. Plans.for expenditure of funds for Training and Technical Assistance,.Prbgrnni implementation, and
Lci-craging Acjivitlrt niiisl be defined in the" Cdntracior's Management-Plan (CMP) and:approv.ed by QSl
Reques.ls'lo.dcViatcfrom the plan must bc.made in writing iri advance, .and approved by OSI ais.prcscribed.fn
tlic MH Policies and Proccdurcs Mahii.ai.

4. In PYiZO, Cbnlracior agrccs to cbrnple'te Wcaiherizaiibn Services on forty-four (44) dwelling uniis accbrdihg,
to thc-siandards outlined in ihc.inpst reccrt.NH Wcathcrizaiibn Policies and Procedures-Manual and'Field
Guide.

(a) Weatherizaiion Services arc intended to incrcasc thc energy .cfriciericyorihcihomc, and to improvcthc'
home's comfort and.safct)'. A Certified energy auditor first performs a-.NHWAP energy audii.oti the;
home.using'sci'cniific test equipment;. Specific energy conservation measures and hcating:sourcc repairs
are then implemented i.n order of prioriiy^and cost effcclivcncss. This integratcd aciiyity .is carfipd.'Oul'in
accordance with provisions.nnd procedures outlined in the most recent NH Policies and.Procedures
Manual-and Field Guid.e.

(b) Thc mitirnium number ofdw.clling units and the amount of funds to'be expended shall conform to the-
provisions of ihiis contract and shall be mcprppraicd into ihc .CMR. Dcyiations of more than 20% from
cxpccl'ed.dwclling unit goals.in-any given quarter may-resuli in a reduction of ihe-cqntract amouhts.and a
reallocation.of funds to oihcr coniractprs.

5- In accordancciwjih the' US DOE's "Quoliiy Work,Plan" (QWP) and the provisions of Wcatlierizaiion
.  . Program Notice (WPN) 15-4 •. . . -

(http;//wvvw.waDlac-.orB/daia/files/Website cloct;/Gbveminent/Guidancc/20l4AVPN-lS-4 Ddn: beginning
April 1, 201.5, Coiitraclor must have rcgular.and reliable access to properly trained and certified Ouaiity
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Control Inspcc(orCs), available as citlicr.staff or cpniracibrs.-.ablc to fully hincticn in.that capacity. This
contract providcsTunding.for.cpniihucd training and technical assisiancc sulftcieni to allow the Cp.niracicif to
secure ond.maintainithc skilled personnel necessary lb meet the requjrbnicnis of V/PN 1.5-4.

6. All work.pcrformed under thc'Wcaihefizaiioh Assislance.Rrografn (WAP) in Ncw Hampshirc, using federal
money from any WAP program year, must meet the minimum' sppci.ficaiibns defined in the US OcpaiHmcril of
Encrgj''s "Quality Woric Plan" (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). belails-are
prc^hted in Die Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home Energy. Upgrades referred to ih.US DOE
Wiealheriroiion Program Notice 15^ (sec link ih paragraph 5, above), as well as in the New Hampshire
Wcatherizatibh Assis'lance Prograrh.'s Field Guide, as most recently amended, which goyenis WAP work in
New Hampshire. Contractor must ensure, and be able to docUmchlforOSI. thai all staff and contractors who
will perfonn Wcalhcrizatiori wofk.are propci'ly"trained and certified for that work and have been inform^
that thcirwork must.mccMhe requirements ofthe SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and
reimburscmciil will not occur.

Exhibits A, B ifiG.
iiiitialsNrrt^
DaieSUSi!®?
Pugc 4-.of5
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In CQcij5idcraiipn:ohhc saiisfacio^ pcrformonc of thc. Scrviccs. ihcStale agrees lo pay ihc-Cpnlractpr,
Tri-Couniy Community Action Program, Inc. ln.iptai, ihcsum cif;

S 364,012.00 (whichjiei^inaftejjs.referred to. as the ".G.onVractcd Amouhi")', of vyhich
S 21,374.00 may b< ex^nded.for Administratton,
S ^S.SSS.OO may be cxpended. fpr Trajni.ng & Tcchh'ica) Asisistancc,.
$  l,2ii 74.00 may be expended.for Health &.Safety measures^
S 304,906.00 (the balance), (q bc'Spcnt on.wealhcrizatipn acl.iviiies. (Program Activity) and.
S '60.982.00 will be.isstied as a cash-advance.

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount wilj tic paid to the.Contractor oniy a'fier written
documentation of cash-need is submittqd to 0Sli .p.jsbursemeht of tltc;cdhtfacted amount shall be made
in.accordance with the procedures established by the Statc'and 2 CFR:200.3b!5(b) on an advance basis;
iirnited to minimum amounts needed; ̂ d be limed to. be jn accordance with the.actual, immediate cash
requirements of the.Contractor in conying oiil the purppseipf the program, T>e; Contractor must,hiakc
timely !paymchls.tOi(sub)contnicto^ in accordancC;W:ith'thc contract provision's.. Contractor "shall submit
a paymchi request to OS) for each niohth of.the,contract-period. Payment requ;csts from Contractor'
shall be.rOcciVed af OSI nojatef than the 15*'' day of cach'month, or the first business day following'thc
.15"^ day.

Adrhin.iilrerivc'cosis.'are provided to .covera-speciricdinumbcr of unit completions'ai minimal slandards,
Adminislrative fundis may be pro-ra'icd .byOSI if.piOduciibh unit compl^ibhsdb not.meet expected.production
goqis-

.OSfmoy, as'a fbneijOh'drilsadniinistrative oversight, modify coritraclcd budget.amounts as necessary to ensure,
ihc'cfficicnt operation of-thc-NHWAP as.lpng as iheseiraOdi.ficd cxpendiiurcs do hot.exceed the Contracted
Amount ipiaias spccificd'.abd.vc,

.All pbligaiiphsiof the-Slale, inciudlng the coniinuarice of-ahy payments, are contingent-upon the availa.bijity and
cbnlihued'appropriaiion of.funds for (he scmces to be pro.vided.:

Exhibits A. B
Iniiiaf,.,.
,Dal6§^&\9^-
Page 5 of 3,
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFJGE QF SIRATEGIC JNITIATIVES

standard EXHrBJt p

'The Coniracior identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to;0iTiply with.the provisions of
Sections SI'S 1-5 l'6d ofthc Prug-FrM;Workpjocc Act of 1988 (Pub.'L. 100-690, title V; Subtitle D; Al U.S.G.
70J et se'q.), and further agrees to'havethe Contractor's representative, as identin.cd in Sections I. I I and 1.1:2 of
ihetGcncral ProyisjpnsCx'ecuic the following Ccrtificaliohi

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORJ^LACE REQUIREMENTS
ALtEi^AtlVE I - FOR GRANTEES.OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US pEPARTMENT QF HEALTH AND.HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENt QF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT QF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certificatiOh.is required by the regulalions implementing Sections 5151 -SlSObfthe-Drug-Frcc Workplace
Act of 1988 ("Pub". L. 100-6.90, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ct seq:). The.Januaryll, 1989,.regulations
were amended orid'.publishcd.as Part' II of'thc May 25, 1'990, Federal RuLMsler.ifpa'oes i2,168 lT2i'69l.), and require"
ccriificaiion by grantees (land by inferenc"c-:sub-grentccs and sub'^OhtractdrsJi, pribr-to award, Ihal they will
tnamiain-a dfu'e-frpc workplace.' Section 3017.630(c) of ihc'rcgulation provides thai a granfce (and.by inference,
sub-granlces and sub-cpntraclors) that is'a State inay 'eiixftb.make-one certification to tlie Department in each
fcdcfa!;;fiscal ycar in lieu of certificates for each gram during the fcd'cral fiscal.ycar coyered by th"e'"ccrtlficaiiOh.
The certificate set.'oul'below'-i$a;malerial rcpre^ntatiOn of ftcf upon .which.reliance is placed when .the agency.
awaird,s:ih"c-g'rahl. False certificaiion.or violation of.thc ccriificati'pn shall be^groundsTpr suspension of paymeriis,
•suspcnsion'or terminaiipn of grants, 'or gpvcmiiKhi wldc suspehsion Or dc.barinent'. Contractors using this.form
shpuld send i| to;

Director, New Hampshire Office of Siraicgic.lnitiatlycs,
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson.Hali, Concord, KH 033131

(A) -The grantee certifies that it will or will continue ro pipvidc.a drug-free!wOricplucc by:

(a) Publi5hing:a statement notifying employees that ihevUhl.awfiil mahufaclure, distribution,,
dispensing; ppsscssiph or use of a controlled substance is prohibited !in the grantccls workplace
and specifying:the actions that will'be taken against.employee's,TorviplatiOn ofsiich prohibition;.

(b) EslablisHing-an ongoing drug-free awareness prpgram lp inrpfin employees about:—

(1)' The dangers of drug abuse in the workpla'ce;-
(2) The.grantee's poiicy of hi'aih'taihirig.a driig-free workplace;"
(Z). Any available drug counseling, rehabilitatipn. and Ompipyec assisiahce programs; and
(4). Th'c.'peiialiics that may be imposcd.upon eniployees.fordrug abusc-vlclations occurring

in .the workplace; •

(c) Making it a.-rcquircment that each employee to be engaged in the pe'rfprhiance of the grant be
giNxn a cppypf lhe siaicmchl,required by paragraph (a);'

(d) Notifying the "employee in the statement required by paragraph-{a) ihaivas.a.condilion of'
•employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide.by the terms of the sialcmeniv'ond
(2) Nonfy the employer in writing of his :or:her conviction for a-violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the'workpiacc no later than five calciiidaf day's after such conviction;

Exhibits D (hni H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALtERNAtrVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS^ cont'd

US DEPARfMENT OF health AND HUMAN SERVICES
US dIePARTMENT OF ENERGY

US bEPARTMENt OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(c) Notifying'(he agency in writing, wiihin ten calendar diays afier-receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2)'from an emplpyee or otherwise'rccciving.actual notice'of such conviction.
Empioyeiis of-conN'icicd.employees must provide i>oiicc, including position title, to every grant
ofTlcer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was woricihgi unless the Federal agency
has designated a central.point for (he receipt of sucli notices.. Notice shall include.ihe
identincation numbcr(s) of each affected grant;

(0 Talcing one of the following actions, within 3.0 calendar days of'rccc.ivihg nolicc.under-
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
lerminalion, consisteni'wiih the requirements of the Rehabilitaiipri Act of 197^ as
amended; or

(2) -Requiring'such.employee to participate satisfactorily .in'a drvg'atiu^e assisiance or
rehabilitation program.approved for such puiposes by a Federal, Stoic, or local Health,
law enforcement, or othemppropriaie agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to niainiain.-a drvg-ffee workplace thfQ.iigh iniplemcniatioh
of paragraphs (a),, (b), (c), (d), (c), and (0-

(B) The granl'ec.may insert in the space provided below the siic(s) forTihc performance of work done in
.connection .with'thc'spcciric grant.

Place 6f Performance.<(strect address, city, county, Slate, zip code) (list each location)

30. Exchange Sltcct
Berlin; NH 03570

Check Q-if thereare workplaces on file that are nol'ideriiin.ed here.

Tri-.Cqunty.Community Action Program, Inc.* 'July 1,2020-June 30,-2.021

.Contractor Name Period Covered by ihls'Gcnificolion

Jeanne Robill.ard, CEO

Namc-and Ti^ of Authorized'C.ontracior Rcpfescniativc

•Con't clor resentative Signature Dale

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF StRATEGJC INITIATiVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Corilrncior ideniificd.in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to qorhply with tlfe provisloris of
Section 319 of Public 101-121, Qovemiment wide Guidance for New Restriclions,on.Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees lohovc ihe.Goniractbr's rcprcsenlatiye, as id'ent.ined in Scclioris I. I I arid 1.12 of
the General Proyisipns cxctuic lhc ,fpllbwing;Ccriificalibn:

CERTIFICATION RECABDING LOBBYINC

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERYlCES

US pEPARTMEiST OF ENERGY
US department of HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Sci^'iccsBlock.Crant
Lo.w-income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRPProgram

WcatbertzaUoD Assistance Program

Contract Period.-; July I ..2020.- June-30, 2021
The undcrsighcd ccrliflcs. to.ihc best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated-funds have been paid or will be paid by or on" Ixhalf.of the undersigned, to any
person for mfluencing or'altcmplihg.io innucncc an ofHccr or employee of;any agency, a Member of
Congress, aii officer or employee of Congress, or an empioycc of.a .M ember of Con^ Cphhectioh
with the^awardi'ng ofanyFcdcral cdniract, coniiriuaiion, renewal, amcndmeni,.or; modification of any
Federal-contract, grant.'lban, or cooperative agreement (and by specific liientipn sub-grantee or sub
contractor)-.

(2) Ifiany. funds other .than .Federal 'appipptiatcd funds have been-paid of will be'paid to any pcr^n for
innuencing or aVlcmpting io.influence an ofTicer oremployec.bf any agency, ajMcmbcr bfCpn^ss, an
pfficcr or cmpioy6c of Congrcss, o"r an employee of a.Member oT.Conigrcss in .connect ion with this
Federal c'ontracti grant, loan, or coopcraiivc agreement (and by specific .mciUibn.suB.-^hlcc ofsub-
contnjctor),;thc undeftigned shall complete and submit Standard Form'LLL, ''Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, iaaccordance with its instructions, attached.and identified.as. Standard ExHibii;.E-i.

(3) The undersigncd shall require ih;|t the language of this ccril.ficalibn.be iridudcd.in the award documcrit
for sub^awards at all tiers"(ihcluding subcdniracis, sub-grants, and.contractsmndcr ̂ nts, loans., and
cooperative agreements) and:(hat ail sub-rM'ipients.sha.l.l Certify al)d diScloK-accdrdihgly:

This certification, is a material represeniaiipn of fact: upon which reli^ce~wa> placed When.this tran^ciio'n was
rnade or entered ihtq. Su'bthissioh of this c'crtif^cation-.is a prerequisite for making-.or.entcring into this transaction
imposed by Seciibn 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who-fails to file the.required ccrtificatibh shall be
subject t.o a'Civil pe.na.liy,qr.rio.tJc$.s than Sl6,'60.0and not.more.than.SI 00,000 for.cach such failure-.

Jeanne Eobiliard, CEO
CoTK^^ctofUcpfcMntativc.Signature Contractolr's Rcpifeschtaiiye Title

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 5/^9-
Contractor Name .Date

Exhibits O ihni 11
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATE.GIC iNiTIATlVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

Tl>e Cpriiniclor idebiified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisionsagrccs:tocomply with the provisions of
Executive OfTice of the-Presideni, C.xcculive Orter 12529 arid 45 CFR Pan 76 regarding Debarmentj Suspension,
and Other Responsibillly Matters, and 'further agrees to have the Conlracior's rbpreseriia.ti^e, Q'Svlberitificd in
Sections l.l'l and l..)2.orihe General Proxasions execute the .following Ccnincalion:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARhlENT, SUSPE.NSION,..AND. OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSAGHONS

Iniiruciionsfor Certification'

(1) By signing ond.sub'mittlri^ (his proposal-'(conlract), the prospcciive primary panicipant.is proyidihg the.
certification set'oui below.

(2) The inability o.f a person' to provide the.certincation.required below will riot nccess'arily re^.lt in cjenial of
participation in.this covered transaction, if necessary, ihcprospective participant' shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide.'lhe-certincatiori. The ccrtiDcation or explanation will be considered iit.'connection
with the NH OITicc of Strategic initiati'v'cS (OSl) detcmi.ina'tjqn wheil^r to enter into ihlSUransaction.
However, failure of the prospective primao'participant to furnish a certincation or.an expla.natibn shall
disqualify sucH-.person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certincation'iri:thi.s clause is a m'aieriai ctepitsentaiion of fact upon which reliartce'\vas:plac'ed.when_O.SI.
determined to enter, into.this transaction. If ii:is later determined'that tite prospective! primary participant
knowingly rendtfed.an e'rroncp.us cehincati6n,.iriaddiiion to olher.rcmcdiesravailable.jto the Federal.
Gove'mnicni, OSI. may<terminaie-this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective pnniary panicipant shall provide iriimediaic written.notice to the OSl agency to whomjhis
propo^l (contrect) is submiiced.'if.at^any time lhe prospective primary panicipaiil fearris that iisxeriiflcalion
was erroneous when submitted or ha's.beconie erroneous by reason-of changed circumstances;

(5) The ichns "cbyeted transacfion-" "debarred," "'suspended"' "irtcligibic,!' "lovyer ticf.cd.v.cfcd.transec'tlon,"
■'porticipani," "perspni" ''prima'^ c<ovc;red.lransacllon," "principal," '-'proposal," and '^volunuirily-cxcUidedi"
as used in' this clause.havc the.mcantngs set out in the Definitions and Gove'rage'sect ions of the rules
Implementing ExeciJlive Order l.2549.;:45. CFR Faft 76.

(6) Th.e.p.rdspe'c'.ti^priroary'parlicipani,agrees by submitting (his proposal (co'n(racl)'llial, sho.uld the proposed
covered (ransaction'be entered into, it.^al.l not knowiri^y enter into any lower tier covered transaction wiih a
person wito Is dcbanred, suspended, declared ineligible; or voluntarily cxciud'ed from'participaliori in this
covered'-iransactioqi unless authorized by O.SJ.

(7) The.'pri^pective primary participant further.agrees by submitting this proposal lhat'it will include thexlaiise
tided '"Ceriincaiibn Regarding.Debarmenl, Susperisib'n, lneligibilit>'and Volunlor^^ Exclusion -■Lower Tier
Cbvcfed Tfarisaciiori$;" provided by OSI, wiihout:modi(lcaiibn, in.al.l lower tier cpyered triansactioris arid in
all solicitations fOr lower rier covered trarisaclipris.

(-8) A participant, in.a covered transaction may rely upon a ccriificatioo of a prospective partlcipant-in^a lower tier
coNxred transaction that il. is nQt-debarred^ su;^'nded, iriellgible, or invbiuniarily excluded from'thc covered
transacti.on, ynle^.it knows-that the ceftincation is erroneous. -A participant ntay decide the/iii.ethc^ and
frequency by which it-.deienmines the.e|tgibi.lity of its pnhcipals. .Each participant may. but-is not requlred to,-

.chec.k the Nori-pnx.urc'mcrii;List (ofexcludediparties).
(9) Nothing contained-in the foregoing shall be construed to ixquire establishment of a system of records in order-

to render in good .faith the cdrtificiatiori required by this clause. The knowledge'and In fonnation of a.
participanl.is noircqui'red-to exceed that'which is.nbrTnally posse.s^d by a prudent person in-the ordinary
course of busings dea lings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized underparagraph 6 of these instruction's, if a partici^rii in a covered
ira.nsaction knowingly enters into a lower tief covered iransaciion with a person who is suspendedi debarred,
ineligible, or voluntanly excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to oiher.remedies
available to the Federal gbvei:nipeni, OSl .may terminate this transactioa for causexr defaul t.

Exhibits D-ihru H»(|J Pagc-4.pf7,
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY CpVERED TRANSACTIONS, conCd

Certift'catidn Regarding Dcbarnient; Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters • Prima^> Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective prima.ry participant ceiiifics.lo the best of its knowledge and belief,'ihai it and its.
principals;

(a) are not presently debarTcd,.suspendi^, proposed for.debamieni,.declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from Covcredjfahsacti'ohs by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a ihrccryear period preceding this proposal (contract) b«n convicted of of had a
civil judgment.rcndered against thorn.for cbnuhission of fraud or a criminal ofTense in.connection,
with obtaining; ailcmplihg to. obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or loc.al);transac.llpn,
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of F^cfai or-S'taie anlithisi^siatutes or-
cominission of cmbc"2alcniem,,ihcft, forgery, bribery,'falsificalion.or destruction of rccord.s,
makingTalsc staictncnis;-or rcceiyjng stolen property;

(c) are-noi. presently indicted for otherwise crimlnially or-civilly charged by a gON'cmmenlal entity
(f-edcral,^ State orlocal) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragiitph (l)'(b)
of this certincati.oii; and

(d) have not,- within a .thfecr.year.period.precediiig.this appllcallon/proposat, had one or more public
transactions (Federal, Slate or local) terminated for cau^ or.default.

(2) Where the prospccii.ve primary .paiiicipant is.unable to ccniry to any of the statements in this
certincaiion, such prpspei^jye-pa'rticipahl.shall attach an^c.xpla'nalion to'this proposal (contract).

Certi/ica'tion Regarding OeSarment, Suspension, ineligt'biliiy'qpd
Vqluntary ExcTusipn - Lcwier Tier Covered, Transactions

(i'o Bc.Supplied to Lower Tier Participants),

!By signiiig and.submitting (his lower tier proposal'(contract), the prospecilVc tower tier paiiiicipani,.as.defined in'
■45 CFR Port 76, ccrtlfics:(p'lhc best of.its knowledge and.bclief that it.and.its principals:

(a) are not.presently deba'fred, suspehdi^. proposed for debanneni, declared ineligible,.or yolunlarily
excluded rrpm.participation in'(his.ira.nsaciion by any fedcfardepanmem'-or agency.

(b) where'the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify-.to any of the.above, such,
prospective'participahi shali attabh.an explanation to this proposal.(contract).

The prospective lower iier particlpa.nl further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineliglbilit)', and Vpiu.ni.aiy Ex'ciusidn • Lo.wef
Tier Covered Transactions.^ wiihbutmodifjcalion ih.a'l)'lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lowcriiier cow^ rai^cti^. \\

^ J Jeanne Robillard, CEO
Coniraci'bHicprcscniaUye.iSignature

Tri-CPuhlyCoihmunity Aciioh Program, Inc.
Contractor Name Date

Initials
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATECrC INiflATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBITG

CERTIFieATION RiEGARDINC THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILiriES ACT COMPLIANCE

The'ConlrBcior identified In-Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Controctor-s
.representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and l.lZof the General Provisions, to execute the foildwing
ceiiificalion:

By signing and submitting this.proposal ,(coniract)'thc'C6hirac{or agrees to make reasonable.efforts'to:
comply with alt applicable-pfovisidns of the Americans.with Disabilities Act of 1.9^'.

Jeanne Robiilard. CEO

.C.dhtrretof Representative Signature

Tri^ounty Community Action Program, Inc.

Conirocior's, Rcprc'sentativc Title-

Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D ihni H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFEICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATLVES

STAI^DARX) EXHIBIT H

CERTiFICATIGN
Public Law 103r227; Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACeO SMOKE

.PuBliaUw 103227,,Part C Enxironmcntal Tobacco Smdke;.aiso luiown^as'ihc.Pro Childitri Aci of 1994, requires-
thai'smoking-not be pencilled in any ̂rtidn of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracied for by
.ah.chiity and liscd routinely or regularly for provision of health; day'care, education", or library services to
•children under ihe.age-pf 18, if thc scr\'ices:ar«'funddd byTcdcral programs eiihcr'directly or through State or"
.local gdvcrnfhcnts, by Federal grani.-coniract, loan, or loan.guarantee,.

The lia!w does not apply to childrcri!s scrviccs.provided-in private residciices, facilities funded solely by-Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and po.riions ofTqcilities used.for ihp'aiient drugcr.alcohol treatment;

'Failure to cornply with the provisions .pf thc jaw ihay.result i'n the 'iinposilion of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$ipOO^r'day ahd/oMhe-inipositlon of an.administraiiye compliance Order.oh the rcsporisible entity.

Bysjgning a"hd..submitling this application ihc^applicani/grant.cc certifies that, it will compiy with the
requirements of the Aci.

The appliconi/grantce further agrees (hat it will require the iahguagc of this certification be included in any"
subawards which/contain "pfovisions forthc.-children's scrvices^and that.ajl.subgrantecs-.shail.cenily-accordi'ngly.,

JeanricRobillard. CEO

Conti^^^aflReprese'ntflti've Signature GorilraCtof's RepreSeritaiiyc;Title

Trl County-Community Action Program,- Inc-.

Contractor Name Date

Exhibits!D thru.H
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NEW HAMPiSHiRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U:S. department OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDlSeRlMINATION IN FEDERALLV ASSISTED
PROGRAMS

0MB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public rcportinfi ̂ rdcn for this collccliori of information is estimated io-averagc 15. minules-per response,
'including'tKe^li'me for reviewing iiisiructions, searching existing data sources; gathering and maintaining (he data
needed, and coinplcling and reviewing the collecii.on of information'. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any othcr'as'pect of this collection of information, includingsuggcsiions for:rcducing this burden, to
OITicc of Infoimaiion Resources Management Policy; Plans, aitd Oversight, Records Mahagcmeht Division, HR-
422 • GTN, Paperwo/k Reduction Project.Xl-9I0-0400), U.S. D^arlmcht of Energy, 1000,'independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585;,and to ihcOfncc.ofManagement.and Budget'(OMB); Paperwork Reduction
Pi^jccl (191 d-0400), Washington, IX 205^^^^^^

Tri-Cburir\ •Commu'nIK' Action Program, Inc; (Hereinafter called the "Applicant"). HEREBY AGREES to
comply wiih.Tltle VI of the Civil RighisAct of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section .16 of the nedcral.Energy
Adminisi.rati^n Act'of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of.ihc Energy Reorganization Act of {'974 (Piib. L. 93-
438). Title IX of thc Education Amendments of 1972', as amended, (Pub. .L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L.
94-482), Section 504 of the.Rehabilitalion Act.of 1^73 (Pub; L..93-112). "thc Age Discrimination Act of 1975
{Pub. L, 94-.135), TiilcVllI of IheCivil Rights Aci.of 19'68 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Depart merit; of Energy
Organization.Acl of 1977 (Pub. L. 95.-9l)i thc EncrgyConscrvoiion and Production Act of 1976, os amended,
(Pub: L. 94-3.8.5) and Title 10. Code of.Fcdcral Regulations, Port 1040. In accordance with the above lows and
regulaiidhs'issucd pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assureihai no'pbrspri in,.the United States shall,.on
thc:ground ofraceiXolor, riationni origin^ Sjcx, age;, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, Crbc'pthcrwiM subjected to discrimination under any program or activity'ih vyhich the Applicanf,
:receives Federal assistance from the Department ofEncrgy.

Applicabilit>\aiid Penod of Obligation
Inrthc case^ofany service, nnancial oid, coveried. employment, ̂uipmeht,.property, or structure provided, leased,
or improy^ with Federal assisl.an'ccxxlcrided to the.Applicant-by the Dcpartmcntsof Energy, this awurancc
obligates the Applicant, for the period during-which Federal-assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid.'^uipmeni, proi^y,.brstroci.ure,'this assurance obligates:the transferee for the period
'diiii.ri'g .which'Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property -is so provided, this assurence obligates t.he-
Applicant'.fdr Ihe-pcriod during, which it retains ownership or possession of.the property...ln.all.o.tiier cases, this
assurance obligal.es the Applicant for the period during which the'Fedemi abisiancc isxxtendcd to the Applicant
by the Cl!ep,ajltrich.l of Energy:

Cniploymeo.t Practices
Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is lo provide cmplpyrncnt or where the Applicanit's
employment.preciices.afTcct the delivery of schliccsjn programs.oractiviiics resulting from Federal assistance
exleridcd by.the Departmeht. the Applic'arit.agrees not to-discriminate on .the ground'pf race, color, riaiiorial
origin, sex, age., or disability,.in its employment -practices. Such cmplpymcri't practices may include, but arc not
limiicd io,-Tccru'ilmcnt, advertising, hiring, layolt or lerinmalibh, promotion, demotion, transfcri.ralcs of pay,
training and participation .in upward mobility programs;- or other forrns of compensation .and use of faciiiliel

SubrecipicDl A'ssuiiince

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or .other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or

Exhibit!
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subleascs.for ihc.purpose.of providing any service, finan'cial aid, cquipmcnl. property, or slmcturc lo;comply
wilh.laws and regulations cjicd above. To this eiid, the subrccipicrit shall be required lo sign a wriltcn.assuranc.c
form;.however,.iKcdbligaiidn of both rccipicnlandsubrccipieni lo-cnsurc coinpjiancc is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assui?nce.fprms;

Data CoUection and Access-to Records

The Applicanragrees to compile and.maintain inforination p>crtoining to programs or activities developed as a .
TcsiiU Of ihc Applicant's receipt of Federar.assislancefrom the Dcpaftrnenl.of Energy. Such information shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (.1.) the manner in which scrviccsrore or will be provided ai^ related
data nccessai^.fprdetennihihg whether any persons arc orwill bcdenied.such service oh.lhc basis ofprohibiicd
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, riaiiona) origin, sex, age and disability; (-3)
•data regarding cpvered cmplpymcni, including use or planned use of bilingual public.'contact;Cmployecs serving
.beneficiafies of the pro^m where ncccssary_ to permit eiTectlve p.articipaiion.by beneficiaries unable to speak or
uhd^land Ehglish;T4) thc'iOcation of existing or proposed facilities connected.with the program and related
information adeqiute fPrdetcrmitiing whether the location has or wijI bave;ihccfTect of tjiiriecessarily denying
access to any person,oh the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5.) the prcsciit or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex,-age.and disability in any planning or advisb^.body which is an integral part ofthc
program; Md.(6) ahy addilional -written.data determined by the'Dcp^mcni:pf .Energy to;bc rClbyant,to the
obli^tiPn'toassure compliance by recipients with laws;citcd in ihefirsi.paragraph of this assurance.

.The Applicahj agrecs;t6.subihit;.b5quesl'cd data to.thc Department of Energy regai;d.irig brograhVs .and activities
developed by ihc Applicant from the usc of Federal as.<ist.ahcc;funds extended by theIDcp^'mcni-of Energy.
Facilities of thc-Applicant (in.Cl.uding thc:physical plants, buildings, or othcr siructures) ahd:,all records, books,
occpuht's, and otKier sources.of ibformaiion pertinent to the Appiicantls.compliahcc with the ci.vil ri^ts laws,
shall bc.-made availableTor inspection dijring n'onhal business hours oh r^ucsi of an officer or employee of the
Depajtment o.f ̂ crgy s^cifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be.
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights. U;S. Department 6f Energy.

This assuraiicc is given in consideraliph ofalrid forthcpurposc of obtaining any^and all'Federal githis, loans,
comracts.(iyccluding;procurcmcnt.contrncts),.propcriy, discounts or o.lhcr>"eidcrai assisiaticc.extendcd:after thc
.date hereof, (oihc Applica.nis by the pepanmcni pf Encrjt/. includingunstaHmenl payments pn accounf.aft.cr
such data.pf applicatio.ii. for Federal assistance, which arc approved before such date, the Appjicaril recognizes
:and agrccs;thai such Federal assistance will be extended.in rcli.ancc.uppn the.ropfcsenlations and agreements
made in-.this assurance, and thai, the United States shall have the rigiii do seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance; Thj.s assurance: is biiidingon the Applicant,the.succesMrs; iransfcfccs.uand aissignecs, as'well as the
pcrs6r)(s) whose signalures appear bclow.and who nrc authorized id si^ this assurance-on-behalf of the.
Applicant.

ApplicancCerilflcatibD

The Applicant certifies that,it has complied, or that, within 90 days pf the date of thc 'ghinl, it will comply with
all applicable requirements ofTO C.F'R. .§ i^0.5 (a co'pyrwili bc;furnished to thc Applicani upon wri.ttcn
request to DOE). '

Jcanrte Robillard, CEO Signature n. Date

TriiCouniy Community Action Program,
30 Exchange;Sireet; Berlin, NH 03570
663-752-7001
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NEW HAMPSHfRE OFFICE OF ST^TECIC INITIATIVES

standard EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIum'
AND TRANSPAiiENGV ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The FcdcVal Fundinjj Accouniablliiy and Transparency Aci (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal gram's equal lo or greater than S'2S,000 and awarded on qr after October. 1.^ .2010. to
report on data related to executive"compensation and;associaic'd firttfiicr is.ub-gra.nti5 of 525,000. dr.niorc.
If'the iriiiiai award, i.s below'525.000'but. subseq'uent grant modifications-result in aiotaf award equal to or
over 525,000. the.award is subject to the FFATA reporting rcquirements,.as of the date'of.ihc awaixl.

.In-accordance-wilh 2 CFR Pan 170 (^Rtponing'Sufxiwardand Execiiiivc C^tnpeii.iqiion Informoiibn)^ the
New Hampshire OITic'e of Strategic Inilialiyei must repon 'the following^informatibn forany subaw&rd or

■cphtriKt award subjaa to the FFATA reporting rcquirentenis:

1) Name ofcntiiy
2) Amount "oEaword . .
3) Funding-agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA progra.m number for gra.nts
•5)! Program source.
,6). Award title descriptive ofthe purpose ofthe funding action-
'7) Location of the entity
8) Prihciplc.placeofpc'rformance
9). Unique-idcntincr of.ihe entity (DUNS H)
10) Total compensation and names of thc lop'five executives if:

a: Mo.fe than-80% of annual gross revenues are'from thc'Federargoyemm'ciU,!and those
revenues are greater than S25M anh.ually and

b. jCorhpe.nsat.ibn information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime graiit fecipiehts miisi submit FFATA rcqulrcd daia by the end of the mon.ihi .plus'OO days.; in which
the.avvard or-award'amendment is made.

The Contractor idcn.ltfi(^ in jScction 1 .-3 oT.ihc Ccncral Provisionsagrcc's to comply with thc provisibns of
The Federal Funding Accountobil.Uy and Trahspafchcy Act,. Public Law- 109-282;.and'Public Low 110-
252; and 2 CFR. Part 170 (Rcp'orp'ng Subaw-ard d'iid Exeatihv Compensation Information), end further
agrees to'hmc ihc 'ContraclOF's represenfaiive, as' identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General-
Provisions execute the following'.GeHitication:

The below named'Gontractpr.agrees-to provide needed iriromiaiipri as outli'nedrabpve.to.thc'Ncw.
Hampshit:e_0.ni.ce .of Stiategic.Initiatives aiid to comply with all applicable provision's ofthe. Federal
Financial Accqqntabiytyam^ransparency Act.

J^hne Rbbiilafd, CEO

(C.onlractorRcliiescniaiive:Signa')ure) (Authorired Contractor Represenlatiye Name & Title)
Tri-iCbuhty Community Adion Program, Inc.

(CbhtradorNamc) (Date) "i

Co'ntracjoririiliars:'
•Date:
Page iofi '
Award #5E-E£0007935.
tFDAd.042



NEW HAMPSHtRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As ihc Conlraclor idenlifi^ in Section 1.3 of the GcncralProvisions, I certify ihat the responses to the
below il^ed questions are true arid accurate.

L The DUNS.numberfopj'our entity is: Q"^ 3^

2. In your.business or organization's preceding compjcted.fiscal year, did your.business ororganiza'lion
receive (1) 80 percent or morc. of your annual gross'.rcyenue in U.S. federol contracts; subcontracts, loans,,
grants, sub-gfarils..ond/orcooperaiive agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more ih.annual grOss 're%renues
from U.S. federal contra.cis; subcontractSiJOans, granis-,.sub{pan(s, ahd/or cooperative agreements?

0  YES-

If the,answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If'the. answer to #2 above is YES, plcasc answcr th'cTollo.wlhg::

.3. Does the public have access to. infonnation about the co'nipensatioh of thc excculives in your business
or organiMtipn tJirough pcriC^ic rcpprts.filcd.uridcf section 13(a) or 15(d)" of the.'Securiii« Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.G'.78m(o), 78o(d)) or scclion (5104 of the lnicmal.Rcvcnue Go.dc.of 1986?

NO YES

irthc answer I0'P3 a.b.oye Is YES, stop, here

l.f thc arisSver 1o.#3 tibove is NO, please answer the fbllowing:

4. T^e-names and.cdrnpehsation of-the five most highly compcnsaiqj.ofnc^ ih yoiif b.uslr»c«.6r
organization are^as.fbilows:

Name: Amount-

Name:,. Amount: ___

Name: Amount:

Narnc:. AinotJhi:.

Name: . Amount:

Contract^ initials:
Dale:
Page 2 of 2
Award #DE..EE0007935.
CFOA8I.W2



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. Williim M. Gifdncr..^rctttTy ofStptc of.ihe Swtc ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify, ihii TRI-COUNT>' COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRi-GOUKTY CAP) is n New Hampshire Nonprofit.Cofporeiion regisicred to transact business in

New Hampshire on May \'i. I WS. 1 furihcr certify that all fees and doc.iunenis required by the Seactaiy of Siaic'iionkeihovc.

been rccciv'cdand it-in'Bt^.siinding as^raras'ihiS'bfficc is concerned.

Business ID: d3020

Certificate Number 0064R7d884

Mf

O

<1

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF:

I hereto set tny'hand.and csuse.io.be affixedl

the Seal of the State" o'CNew Harnpshire,

Ihii' lit-day of' April AtD;^2026.-

William M..C8'rdncr

Secretary of State



CERTl FlCATE OF VOTES

(GorporMc Authpnfy)

[  Sandy Alonzo Chair of tri-Coun(v Community Aciion Program; Inc.
[ntmc). (^T>P«!tion.n8ine)

(hereinafterthe "Corporation"), a- New HampshiircJ co^ration, hereby .certify thai:
C«aic).

'(1)1 am'theduly clcctedarid jQCting-Chair of the Gotpora{ion;;(2),l maintain have custody arid am
fomiliar wiih [the rriihulc-books of the Corporation; .(3) 1 arn-.du'ly autKdrizcdJo issue ccrtificotes,w resect to^ihe:
iconicnis.ofsuch.books; (4X'thal;ihc BoaM of Directorsdfthc Corpora.tiori.havc.-autKorized.-'ori l» 1 .

I

such;authbnty tp.bc;'iriiforcc and'cfTwi uiitil June 30'..2()2(.
(conirsci i^itotion dtte)

The persori(s)hoIdirig the below, listed posiijori(s).ai^ authorized to'^ecutcand deliver on behalf of the-
Cofpdrptipri any cpnlractprplhcrTristrtjmc^^^ for ihc'.salc'pf producis-and scrVictS!

Jeanne Robiilnrd CKief:Execulive Ofticer-
(name) . (PQi'Mon)

(MTO) Cpojiuon)

(5) the meeting of ihc.Bbafd.df Directors was'licld.in accordahce wilh :New Homoshire
.('stale '6r:incon^mti'oii)

law, and-tlic by-iaw.s .of thc Gptporalipn;- and (6) sai.d authorization has riot been modificdi, amended or rescinded
•and c.oniinucis.'i'ri'.fpU'force.arid-clTwt ais'oflhc'datc',^

:rN.''WlTNESS -WHEREOF, lihave'licrcunio.sct my. hand as.ihc Chairofthc cQrpo.ra.iipn.iliis
dayoP May-. 2020.

^TATE.OF New Hampshire

COUNTY-.QF Goos

Chair

:Qrithis.<3S^ :dav6f _May ,.:2p20 bpfpremf,. Ghnsti'noMoriri.lhe undersigned
Orficcri.pcrsbhaily'aFipfeared Sahdv Alorizo. -who acknowledged hcr/him'serfto be the Chair
of Iri.CtwMv f/.^wi.iA^AfKr,y\ Prttomm, iflc- ■ a co^raliori and.lhaiihe/hc as such Chair ^
:aulhori2cd to.<Jo ̂ . executed the.fdregoing insirument'forthc;purposcsthcrcih;contained.

IN WITNESS.WHEREQF, I hereunto set ni'yjian.d andpfficiSiisM).,

NotafjipiftJTlCiJusiicc-'.pf^^^^
ppmrnisribn'ExpiraU 12/19-73'

.  I

CHRISnhW

Harnp^ire,
My Comrrauipiri 0.202 3



tRI-eOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

I7FV19 Board Resolution: Resolutidh ofihc Cbroorgnon.

AmhorhvtoSign

Thc.Board of Dircciors of Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. (Ihc "Corporation").
Uk'cs the following.aciion.

Resolved,

Thai the Tri-Couhiy Community Aciion Program, Inc. Chief Exccutivc Omccr (CEO) Jeanne.L.
Robillard. Chief Financial Oniccr(CFO) Randall S. Pllbne, and. Chief Opcfailng bfficcf
(COO) Regan L. Pride ore hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to eiitcr into contracts
wiih the Federal Go\'ernmeiit', State of blew Hampshire, and any other pariies as deemed
neccssar)' and to execute any a'lid all dociiihenis, agreements aik) other instruments and
amendmc.his, revisions or modifications thereto, us may be dccm;ncccssary, desirable, of
appropriaicTor ihc'cOTporatioh; this authorization being cnforccd.ond effective until June 30**.
2020.

Attest, .(he.-fesoIuiidh.ddoptcdTliiefein was duly ouihoriZed by the Board of Oifecioi's on Ju^e'25'^
2019

Name:^andy Aloi
Title; Board Ch'a

By;
Nanic: Cathy ay

Title; Board Treasurer



vteora* certificate of liability insurance eArspMADomnm

02/29/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF IWFCRMATION pWLY AND CONFERS NO ,RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLOER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT /U^nRMATI^LV OR NEGATTVELY AMEND; EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE.POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 0,065 NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTIUCT B6TV/6EN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHOflBEO
R£PR6S6MTAT(VE6RPR0bUCER,AN'0THECeRT1FjCATEKbL0ER. . .. .
IMPORTANT: If ths csftiflcsu NeUsr U sn /U)OmONAL INSUREO, the pollcy(i*«) must hsv* ADQITIpNAL INSURED preylslOAS or b« stidorMd.
If SUBROCATION IS.WAIYED. subJpct to ths tsrmS'Snd cendlllons of tlva pell^. cansin peDcJas tnsy rsqvlrs sn'sndorssmtnL A ststsmsnt.Dn
this eartincats'dets not confer rkihU to thS Mrtfflcsts Ndldorin Usu of auch 'andi>rs*n>ont(s).

PROOUCCR'

FM/Cross Irwxsne*

1100 Efcn StTMi

Usncfwstn ''H 03t0l

Karon SnsvgPnossy

IM3I66M21.' I.ES;.h„

SsTn. kshoughnestyecioss#9W*y.emi
■ISU*eR(t) AFFCnOOfO COVCRAOe MACa

PNlMltlpNalrtsCo

WSUMD

Tri-CeuntyComnwiliy/action Proorim. Ine
:30 ExcharioaStraal.

BMn NH 03970

a-. Granks Suia.Haaflh Cart and Hurrian Sontces SaS-
atsuRS* c :

■nuRKRO:

■isuRue: ,

•I3URPRF: . .

TMIS IS TOCfiRTWTMATTME POtlCCS'l* IHSUHANCE USTEO'SELOWHAVE BC£W SSOCO TO T>« »«SUfteO NA*l€0,AaOy6 FOR THE POUCY ^ftlOO
WDJCATED MOmfTMSUiOIHg ANY REOUfftEMEKT; THRU OR CONOmON OF AWT COMTRACT OR.OTHER DOCUMENT WITM RESRECT TO WMlCH IMS
CCftliFICATE fcWV BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTApi. THE WSURAHCC AFFORDEO.BY THE ROllCieS OESCROeo HERW IS Sl^CT TO^ JKE TERMS.
EXduSIONS AND dONOiT^ Op-'SUCH POCICies. L»«T8 SHOYW MAY HAVE DEEH REpUCEp BY PAjP CUIMS..

wjcveirs!sir
IT* n*c OP wagRAMce POCCT NUWSC*

X ectmcRCM. eoeuL UMRfrr

~| OAwaiiMoe 1^ occvR

OCMV «OQREa>T6lAaT AFPUESPCR;

poucY rn-5« rn loc
OTHt*:.^

PKPK2003Ste

HIEVEFT
ffttXPOftYYTI

O7/0T/2O1S

IMMAICPYmT

07/01/2020

cpCMoeaMRCHct
TBnXBETOTCHTEtr
P2£iESii£^£fiS9S£il&
4COWI*<»T'»M»wn)

pcmoma. > my/pumv

OCMRAAMICRECAIE

PweoucTi.coMPiOPAOC

CONgtfl£0 iMOLE LMfT
|g«

, 1.000.000.
100.000

9.000

I'l.OOO.OOO
3.000.000

I 3.000.000

AUTOMOeU UARVTY I 1.000.000

X MfYAUTO

6m^ .
AUTOS ONLY
HMO .
AUTOS OfCY

•aOLV NAIRY |P«>MinV

VHSACUAUAO

excess lm

SCHEOULEO
AUTOS .
HQMCMCO
AUTOS ONLY.

PHPK20O3S23 07/01/2019 07/01/2020 BOIM.V NA/RY |P«
PROPERTY bSMAOE
•fPw

X OCOM

CLAPMS MACS' pKUBSft3002 07/01/2019 07/01/2020
EACH OCQAWENCE 2.000.000

2.000.000

CEO I X WfTEWTION S 'lO-OOO
Xiaftun, .!nORXCAS CONPCMATWH

AND'tMPtAYCXrUAAa/TY
AKYmoPRCTORPMTMCRCXCCUINC
opf'ccaucmkr ExCuiocdt
pUaSilwuMWK)

OtSCRyTTOWOPOPCTATlOWS

HCHS202b0000241 (3a:) NH. 02/01/2020 02/01/2021 e-LEACHACCCewT , 1.000.000

EX. POCASE •• Ea'EmPlOYEE ^ i .opp.ooo

EX. DOEAaE • POLCT LAOT. 1.000.000

pro/atllOASl Lb&Cly
PHPK2003518 07A>1/2019 0.7/01/2020

EpcR OcGUTsnea

Aggrcgalt

tl.OOp.OCp
S3.ooo.66o

OCtCR»TeMOP^IUnoNS>LOCATnNS/VeHCieS-|ACORD lai. IliWiMllUwirtuKlwPAP.—T»«iNMAXawri»»>M l» >•«*•«■

NH OX«a o< SVateofc Uitotlwoa:
107 Pitasani Strael

Jetinsen KM

Concord 1^, 03301
1

SHOULD /LHY OP TKS ABOVE OESCWBED POUCIH BE CAHCCUJED BEFORE.
THE EiCPIRATIOH DATE THEREOF. HOTTCE WflLL BE DEL^REO M
ACCOROANCE.WfTH •me ppiXV PROWIONS.

AUIMOROeo RSPnCSt NTaTPPS

■AC0R0 2S (201Sra3) Th« ACORO nsms'snO Iobo Art.rasltterad mariis of ACORO



TRI-COUNTY
OMMUNITY ACTION

Serving Cods. Carroll & (Cotton Counties since 1965'

Coos Coun^

Board of Directors

FY2020

Carroll County Grafton County

Board Ch'alr

SandyAlpnzp

Interim Board Chair

Anne.Barber

Linda Massimilla'

Michael Oewar

Kardllna Bridz'owska

Tricia Garrison

Richard.Mclcod

julie.Davis



Tn-C6unt>- Community Action Program, Inc.

WAP Kev Personoci

Name Job Title Salary

Jearine Robilla'rd Chief Executive OfTiccr Si 19.999

.Randal Pilotlc Chief Financial OITiccr S77;85P

Regan Pridfe Chief Operaiichs'Officcr S71.960

Gerald Milliken', Jr. Divisioo Director S52.000

Naihan Mills Division Manager S45.01 1



JlieonDBC (L. DBobiODard

ronE STTIBEIVCTIHIS

;ProRrflii> <k-vel<»]>inciit. managaiicnJ.ind adniinijii'aiion • Communia- collshoraiinin
Do'cJopnicfli fikpfjIicy, pniiocdl, ami Jcn'icc ddivciy lo.mcer lundcr siaivlards

Crani uTiiinn and mafwgcrhcnt ♦ B'udgcc pcrfdrniancc and financhii rcix'tninjj.
Inftyvaiivc $olutiom,&.problem lokiflg. • Capitijy building

Hrorctiionai prcfcniath>n» ?• Public speaking
IDedicaiion •• imaginaikin ♦ 'Deitrminarifm • I'linitude

ll'HrtEES.SION4E KXP'EWIEIVCE

Tri>Coun<T f'o.mmunifa' Action ;l*rojy[rnn»«. Inc.
l.liicf'ExcruCia-*-. Officer

flcrlin, IVil 20! ft • r.ttrr^nt il'T'emp/oymeMtf

Tri;Coun<j' l.'onscnuniO' Actien-I'rugramai.. lor.
Chief-Opcra(iag,Of(ircr
RcHio.AU ■30.10.2010
Responsible for the o)>crations of.six agctwj- pK'isiqn.i with 15 individual prujjrams thai provide .over
60 consunicr.$cr\*iccs across threc-couniics.of ts'orihcrn'NW Hampshire; V-sscnnal <luiics include;
superv.isionuif Division Di'reciors, oversee and'-monitor program resources, revenues, expenriimrcs"
nnd'budgei pcrt'omiaucci incncal «»vcrsighi of programs to meet or exceed "agcncy'<lcfiiVcd strategic
'goals; develop and implement siraicgics-to improvc individual prrigrams and overall agency program
antl lisctl. performance; oversee and lead spe'cial projects sucli-as the Annual Report,,Strategic Plan.
Gtmmunit'v K*c«ls Assessment prott.*$,.and.work with'Scnior Management Team to ticvektp new
sch'icc iitiiiati'vcs. Provide taciical guidahcc^to Oivisiuii Dircctors to t.r«>ui)lc sl»>«'»i issues ajKl pn'ddeins
in ihe daily opcni'(i<nis uFprugonVs.

Tri^CsMtnly Comoiunil*'A'rSson Rrogrnrat. Inc.
riit'iwton i>Sr«:^4»rt TCCAI* Frc.vrnCiati
ilcrlin.MI :30'I.V;3allti
.Responsible fur four-agency programs under thc.umbrclla.of'IX^CAP-Prevention Scr\;ire$;-oversee
division resources. tvvenucSi and expenditures and monitor budgct perfcintiancc;'general oversight of
programs to tncet or exceed .agency defined strategic goa'ls;;.<upcr\'i$c program directors: write grants
to suppi^iri programs, monitor resultSj aiid prepare grant rcpo'ns and financbl staiemcnti for funders
and..agency; develop londraising and inaiictirig stra.tegies forprbgrams; repfirseni program ihniugh
paVii.cipaiioh' in state.anriltic'al injiiaiives relative to phJgrain/divisioh goals antl sca'ice ddivcrx-;
coll.abonite uaih siakciuiklefs' and elccted.tVfficialS; including prescnting.legbilativc j'estiriiony.

IVi^oanty. Com'rauii.ilv j\Hiun l*rt>t<raimt. lac.
Program/lln'isibii DiircrSori SupjMrl C«;nli;r. nl Rorrlt'llouM
Lilflcluri. IVr.w lliinipKhirc' 36d7«-30ii
GiXT.SLC.dailv operation and siipcn'-ision of dnnic$tic..aiui .*cxiial lunlenee crisis-renter and residential
tlielier; write gianis.io supivtn pm^rams, nuiniior results, and prepare grant reports arid financiail
srateinchts lur furitlefs a'nd parent-pgcncy;.rivc'rscc j>r<»grari» resources, revenue's and cxpcnditurc$,.aivl
iTvininir budget pixftirmance-ahd ph^rcss'toward strategic goals; crente-ariil direct-viciiin advocacy
programs'to e'nsiifc ctinipliarice with grant dclivcniUes .anil applicable'.state anrl federal law; develop
furidraisirigand ni.af^kcti.ng siro'rc^cs.i-pa'r'iiciparc in Itaic.and li3cal .coUaboraiioris ib cnhaticc vic.uiiv
sc'A'ices; represent poigoi'm in state and fcdthiil'yi'cuin.'.scfS^ i'muatives, including pres.entaot/n of
legislative testimonv; create and pri-scfi;.:traii.iiiig$ |!t>r inedical and legal proTc$sii,)na!$-qn legal siai.tdards;
and best practices f«jr vJctiin scn-icc-s.



JL Robillard/2

nookk«cp<5»;; *Voaicir»-Horhl En<rcprcn«uriut Xclwork ,(WRE.\>
sXII rarrrni PT Voiplajtm-nl

Rcsponsi'bk-- Tor gram n.-ural iracking; reporting, fundj release and account-iransfcrs, bi-u-cckly payn)ll
n'lul 041 [VaynKnts. accounts pavahic and receivable, rnnnth end rcconciliadons fQi; bank accounts,
credit fards. peny cash', rciai) and maiict saic.s; numtltly POS/QH reconciliation for three, retail
Ipcatmns. preparing monthly cash flow-, forecasts, and .siandatd ftsca) rcpuris for BoariJ of Dircciot?.

Tri*C'«iuuly CbniBi'cinif.v Arfion Program*;. Inr.
IlirnH .Wrrvlrc*/*'oiufilrcr Coorilioalor: .Sttpporl Ccolcr al llurcb llouar
LiHlcloo. iVcw llampahtrv Iftft7 4a3007
Pfovidc^advocacy and direct service to victims of iKimestic and sexual violence; supervise c»mrt
advocacy programs; rrcniii, train and supcrx-isc staff, volunteers, and interns; tlcvclirp agency systems,
policies ami prdiocrtis; create and present community outreach.prcsenutions and cini|.>fligns; present
schooi-hased violcitce prevention classes fttr grades k-i2 ; provkic «m-call ctmerage of crisis hnc

Dirrrlor: llovrrbill Area Jovmllc Ulvr.r«loo Prc^rom
Weorfvaillc; IVr.ar flnmpabire |flS'f»«200l
Recruit, train, and supcrx'isc volunieet diversion conimiiicci; cs'tabiish commuriiiyprogran-iining for
divxrieil youth; supp«.>r«ive counseling of \-t>uth; maintain collalxrraiivc relaiionships bcrvvccn thc coon
system, juvenile service officers, local pttlicc dcpnnmenis. intl diversion pn.granS; prepare .and file
cnun rcpttns on divcrtcd y<Hiih; comntunifx-outreach aml cducatton

<:«o«M l«r/"n«lf: I iXarlHcra Fooiilv ln.<t<i«al4..JrfrerKtin Sthr.llnr
Jrffrnson. iVc.ar. Ilacripwbir'r innO-lflflA
Provitic iiidivklual supp«)nivc "cbon.<cljng lo adjudicaicil yotiili,.facilitaic peer $upp»,xrt-grwips. dpvclop
and implcnx-nt tri-atme'rii plan's anil case thaitagC-m'en'i scn-iccs to clients; sujscrvi.sc and tutor youth m
claS.<nv»m sciti'ng, sup.erx'isc yVKiih in daily'living skills

KdnrAiioti

II.S in Human .VrrViMta:; .Springrirld Collc^f .School nf. Ilanian .Srrsiccr. n«i«l«n. J^IA
Cfiriiihal JiisiiCe Concentration. Cr,itiiiaMuyth 4.0 (i.l'A

.\S In lirufi and Alcobol Brliabili.lnii'icm'l^nuiVMding IHAIIC' Progrhml
b'outbrro 4.'onB«?«dtra< €.*atTiinaHi(v Callegr. Nr,w lln**rn, €71*

AtiHiiionol Stiillw. l.<-mlenehin niid Cavir Atgilioiipn*

• a»aiiman. Ikdilvltcm lUi-artl «»f-.VIccimcir,'foaiit "d" hvthichctr) Tance l.dccicd 2iJ66-2<llO
• Oi«irmnnr.Aiis .-MHarvcv of Nt»nlKn»'K'cu- Hanipsltirc 2{i(iO--20*}y,.Tnattrnr l99f>-l9VS

Oiajrn'tiin.i laverhill .Atca l'ainiiyAV>'lcoc'f C.ounril I
• CcnifioJ PRiiNJP. Ht'lR i.ll-ii Impaired Driver InictvmiH.m Prc.igw.m lri>iruk:i<'r #NI1I61 W

Rcgi.-tercd.Scxual i-larassmeni Prc.vcntM»n ■j'raincr itx the State nfNcw Mantpshirr
• Bc»ard Member. \VontenV Rural iZhireprehcnrial Mcrw-ork TOU: luttrnJoa!i\UiMk-r^S >OI7

i^cihlchem Phoning ISoaid 2010 • '201 f
• Bethlehem Consco-aiiori Commissinn 200fi tnthnt
•  'Cranhc United Vihy, Morili Country Caliihct Mcnjbcr' 2011-2012.
• TCCAP: (:ommcnd.uh)ri- Diviswm Director .^uanl, 2011
'* lt«.ihWH'm.Giiy-en's Advi*«»»y <".4»nVmirice «;n R«ycling 2007-20JO.
'♦ Licensed.I'vSter P-.trcnt. State <>f-?xl,H ■2'X>^l-2(>06
■* .Small Ruslness (T^wnn : .-Xnt'tra'liriergics 2bl:S.- fhrnm
• Spcakea.rvTrill |a;/.? Vinnilist/ Swcci )ainm S;it?g bniul.Jarii: \'«-calisi 1997-nfmul
• Member; Uniird SiaieS I'igiife Skstiix); A>M<i3iion/lnicrnaiioiul Skaiing Insiiiutc mmnl ww 1.99)



Ran'PALL S: PiLOTTE

S. U M M A R \

Accouniini; professional, vviih bvtr 29 xxarx of experience.-of which 21 years were wiih fl single prixnc nttnofaciurcr.
16 years of experience managing nccouniing profc«ional.s. Key compcicncics include:

Financial Stoiemcius Accounis Payablcs inx-cniory Fixed Assets
payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables SalcsAJsc Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Miiiagcincni Audits Forecasting

E X P F. « I K N C E

TRI.COLiNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.. Ucriih. Nl 1 D6/201.1-Pr«chl

CFQ(20I7-Prcscmj
Work closely with the CRO. Treasurer and Finance Contmjttec to identify performance, goals for the Agctycy arid to
maintain systcnts to' monitor pcrrorriiaiice against those-goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, innilcmcnt and ex-aluatc the
rm-tncial managcincm systcnw and actixHtics ofihc Agency xsnth a budget of.Si8M'.
•  Prepare/provides-conxplcic and accurate financial, statistical, end aeeounting records for the Agency and outside

regulalory'agcfKics..
•  As a tncmber of the senior nunagctncm team, assi.ns in the formulation and execution of cofporaic finance

policies: objcciiycs and'prQgronts...
•  Prepares prpjgriim and agency budgets in co'njuneiibti with the CEO arid Program. Oircci^s. Plan, direct,

cottrdinatc, implement and evciiuaie fiscal pcrfornxancc rcxriexx-s of Tri-Cotmty CAPs divisions.
•  Hire, ifoini.direct-and ex-nluaie en^lbycc pcrformnnce vviihin ilxe departiiKtn; rccomntchd prbntoiions and salary

adjusiritents.
•  Provides supcrx'ision and direction' for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring tliat all iixorigagcs. leases ond

covenants arc nxairiiainci! for Tri-County. CAP*.< facilities. Crcalinn of llvc-ycar capital plan:
•  Review* cash flmx-s lor each division, monitor casli imnagctncni pmciiccs. and monitor invcsuncnis associated

xxHih each propcny.^
•  Pre'pa.rcd fix*c-yc,ar debt reductiu'n piah.

Fiscal Dlreciorflnierlm CFO (20I6.~ 2017)
.• Direct and nonage a fiscal stwlT. of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, pajToll, and accounts

payable, account.* rcecix'ablc. cash receipts and fixed assets.
•  Prepare and supervise the production of financial siaieiiKni.* including Balance Sheet; Rex-cnue and Expense

RcppnsVaixd Ctwl Suntnorlcs on a iribnthly and aitniial basis.
•  M.a.intairi.|voper accounting controls qagrarus end..coritribuiibn$ to eruuir aixi^ie.rcx-cnuc icponing and expense

mteking tb.strpport periodic.'nwniioring's byfunUcrs and audiiori.
•' Ensure all balance sheet, rcx-cniic arid expense accnurits ate aiialxo.cd and rccbnciicd pcfibdieally.
•  Gbllaboroic xviih Division Dirccturs to irtbniixK dcpartiikriiul revenue and c.xpeiises versus budget.
• Worked "wiili 'tlic CFO to dcvOiop real liniC nionthly oiid' anhiial financial repprtirig: and iriipl'ciiiciiiing

dcponmcmal gnais.
•  Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.-
•  Colbboraic xviih c.xicmal auditors in completing annual audit in a.liniciy nunncr.

Accounting iManager UOlS-JDjri)

Sr. AcrountBni'(20l3-2dl.'l)
RA.NpALL PILOlTE RESUME:

KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC. ff/k/a Hlnc Seal Feed.*. Inc.l. L.trndondcrry. NH. 02/I9R9-09/20IO



Acsitlini Controller (200S-20r0)

•  Ensuicd Qii-Accum'ic aiid linKlymonthly ond ycnr end cio.sc. coa^istini< of-ihc prcporoiiori of a consolidaicd and
individCol nnancul statement in accordaiKC unih GAAP ror''.ninc inanuTaciuring plants and -11 reiai) stores with
gross, rcxx'imcs in excess of 5200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing joiirtui entries, account
anal>'si$. inventor)-reviewand obscr\'ation. fixed assets, and depreciation.

•  ' Managci^ trained, and supervised a sien* accuuniani rcvponstblC for ensuring aeetiroie.jouriial entries^ ihycniory
recbnciliaiion. lorthage tax returns, bank reconcillAtionit. and assignment orspecml-projccis.

•  Oversaw all aspects of proprietary soflware, mulli-staic pa)Toir8y«cm' for 500 cmployccis. -Prepared all fcdcrai
■nd state payroll tax rcpons. including quancrly and year-end return!!, pfoccs.ving of W2s, and supervision of
payioll clerk.

•  (nicrrarcd with .1R various banks throughout blew England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prcparcd.muhi-swc.'saics/usc tax-rcttjrns and acted us point dfconto.ctTor audits.
«  Pro-octivxly; coAChed and consulted plant and store managciitcnt oti the annual budget development process.
•  Oversavv.monih-cnd accruals.
•  Assisted and rcspoii^, to ai^itors.' requests on aniiual audit.
'• Filet) annual frarvchisc aitd ahan'dqitcd propeiiy repons wiih upprupriaie states.

Accuuntiag Maaagcr (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporaie Controllcf's imiiativics by providing .sup^vision and ovieisighi. to the AccouniingTuneiion.
Sujicrvis.ed and trained two accounts |wy.iblc-clerks-on Clian bl* Accounts. Account,s-Payable; lintcly attd accurate
prqccssingafid payment of vendor's invoices, cntploycc travel rcimburscnKnis. and standard accouniing prociiccs.

Aeeo«ntanC/PoyroirSupervisor'(l99«}-{999)

A'eeouni'ant (1989-1^)

NORTHERN TEI.ECOM. INC.. Concord. Nil 05/1987-03/1989
Assuriiie Results Accouhjiinl (I9K8-I989)

Aecuuntf Payable (19,87-lf)88)

EliUCATION

Bachelor of Science; Aceoimiing. Frakklin' PiEKCECot.Li:Cti. Cv)fk6rd..NH



REGAN L. PRIDE

Sl/^tMARV

My cxpeiicare ipau ihc.Rcldi orenjinceiinj. coiiipvici lechnolPD-. educ«iion. •nd public «dinujj»jriiion.
"niis ufti^ cotnbiiuilon brinji a wide ifiay of btowlcdgc and ikillt io the ubU fof your ortanaaiioo. I am a
icaio pJa>-cr. a paiirnnraiorr. and adqx ai inicrpcaoaal leiaiioAs.

RCVELANT k'NOWLEOCC AKP SKILL AREAS

• Confidtftct i# public tpeakifiB for buwrwil and uchnical appllcitiont. and insiruciional
• SiTOt^ wriiint iWifii and inicTwnona.i communictiion tkilii. abflii)- lo uach when, and bdiW c6n«flt«$
» Approachable, warn and per«ohable-«yle in iCKhing clauej and iMcneiins wijh colleacues
• Rdhuiledoraiiohinmalheinaiici.cncifletringaftdieneiiltcieneeioftirj

.  • riucncy with ctuirc Micrvwft OfTicr applkaiien auiic.
• Fluency unih AutoCAD computer-aided drahins toftwmic
• ̂amiliarity-u^h-AcrView CIS tdftware.
•. Famdiai with Avtmc Enicrprije Rcjource Planning aoftware
• Familiaf ttiib BMSI fund a^unfintand Avi'iarajioiiogAa* hilling aoflwaie
•  MiCfpmediyAdobe OcamWeavtf MX web-aiie deiign joftware

WORK EXfLKIENCE

NORTH CbUN'TRV COUNCIL REGIONAL rtANKING COMISSION Uileton Nil
ITTLC: Plaitrjtr. 2012-201.1 t'2DlS-20ll
Managed tojtd h««c leehmca! aiticu'ner program funded by USDA Rural Dcv<lopme«. Coodncled -Full to«.
Acc^ing" Qudies of municipal tolid waste depanmcni operaiiont. Rcvic«:cd and updaicdiopcraiing plant for
ntynicipal solid, waste.raciiiiics. Orgamud housefaold hazardous waste culleciion events. Created ai^ delivered

■tiaining prdtfims for sdlid U-aste opcraier eertifiealion.. Created pilot programs to rediKc d: di«n food ^atte
fiom tandrills in •> communities.

-2011-2014

IKNOVAnVESTKUCrilRAI. nUll.iilKO PRODUCTS
TITCJE.- Prajeti'Maiiager
Pcrfomted a.viriciy of funalofis including business plan fucpareimn and ptt^urt dctelopment itsnciaicd Uith a
tiars-up company. Ill the ^ineered wrmd shcalhing industry-. I created engineering diawingt.-fouili and tested
p(Oiot>'P(f.'aid assisted in marVeiing'uiiviiics.

2pOO- Present
ICAhn'0O:ENTERPRISF.S. Lisbon. K'H
TITLE: Owner. Computer Apipliraiiehs Ccnsuiiing
AisistBhce arid iraining-wiih bosliKsi and leehiiieal applications. Crtaccd dustom.iied solutions liii-olviig
AutoCAD. MS Work. MS Eaccl. MS Access softwaic applieaiiom. I alto perlooii web site HTML and C'dl
dtV-elopm'rhl. hardwate setup, upgrades, and'iroublcshooiing.
Recent clients-'projccis includc;

•  New En^and Electric Witt Corp - Impleniemaiiein.nr Avante MRP-4 APS seheduling software
cwpoiciiztd WIP laWing.iysiefti. .cdmpuier worksution installations, usci/dperatoi training.

•  Liuleion.'KH Senior Soft lull League - eusiom prpgramm tng-andsupponnf statistical software
•  Lovisitna.CotporateCiedii Union - Web site.drsign and mainirnanee.

Jlrammrr Cieel; - Web site detigti for wlioleialc Rurd disiributoi.



20M-20I3
TOWN OF LISBON. K-H. Liiboft. KIT
TITLE; Tet>:ii AilminldriilAr, CPM
Prcptrcd wnwj i6«D badge.w.md pcrfwrncd .1 I«ul«g5 .rid lou^ meaing. Prcptrcd
i^l n««..„cpons (MS-2. KIS^. MS-6) fp, .he ,<,«u Gtpeaud u.v

T--" .lr«f.u« k.b.U«« depinmen.'! budge.. Peifonned .berunciww of rm»nci»1 •dininis.rai«n. pcnonnel nunigemcni. gian. •dmimuallon. ■dminiiiruldn
enje.gtnc)' mitugeneni, tad projrci fflanagemrnt.

IMO-2000 £ 2004 - 2006
NEW,ENGLAND CATHETER GORTORAUON. Lnbofl NH
{$ub»idi»f)'0fNt«; Eftglind Wire TechriologieU
TITLEr.Englorcr, iMcpicil ProduruPerfonned p^ns engincefing tuppon ib the msnufaciure of wv..frinr«ced fflcdica! (ubing incKidini-

jpecfictLon. pioce^pVocedurc developmen.. k>oJinB design, ind s...i«ic»l.d...-.niJv,«
Developed euswffl.zed ipreodtheeij for produei design, and mwufKlwIng procesi eonuel
! »-os'6!w ^ployed wiih the pwcni-co^n); aj inenglnecf/CAD openK>f from 1990 lo 1000 While lo ihb
ctpocf)-. I kd |KWl rompo.e. u«.i groups. h«„HeO ,Hc fim C.hema ne.HO,v in .he compMv enKirKeri..f
depanmenj. and developed comptfterr.ltmw»gcmcn. i)iiem$ and bKl-upfouiinej.
2002-2004-

SO^OOL AD.VHNJSTRAriV'E UNIT35-. J.ii.le.nn, NH
TITLE;.Diflanre.Learning CcwrdinaiarT^ ̂ sitlon inv-p!vea-.cpUtbof»»'ion-wi,b .eacSen" and *.afr.o denlop ime.inive cduea.Jonal procetms

"tt'^dcocorifenrnclnt^^ dipributed be. ween iWce high schoolc^puiej. ,«ludcd ae.«p. conr.{ora..on. opert.«n and maimenance of videoconferencing endpoinu and
""""" -"W

LniKrATIO.SVCERTinCATIONS
NH Bureau.of Educajjcm and Tnim'ng
CPM CcfTificaie (CenifJed Pubic Manager)
Unlvcn;!.); of.Caiifomia at.Berkete)-.- Enginrenng DcparinKR.
92 t.cmntcf ncdiu in MeeKaniral Engineering Major

WiVniMl^INC EDtXTATION
•  Ceninqd Pyblk'Supervisur progian.
•  R^dvisioa N;2J2'icchniciin L'cnirte
•  SiA'Sigma'ixchTss coniroJ cuurfc b>' Uoiidii Sck-ntiric Corp.
•  Ei.naiao Theor>- courar ai Uiiivmii)-.o} Massachuseiu. LovelJ

HHOKESSIONaI. & a VIC associations
• Bo^ (if DirevU>fJi Norih Coimio- CouneiLRegioibi Planning Commission.

nethlelKm, NH; 2007-26l2. SciSTd w.cbiinntn in;20n.
Grafton-Coo. Regtwal Cuqrdinaiing Council (fw public .raruhh LiiJleton, NH- 2009-'»'0P

• .Mc«heiorKHMMA.NHGFOA.NHf.VVAA-2006-20l> * "
'  ̂jSelenman,. IJsbpn. NHMareh 2000-2006. Sers-cd at ehairmah from 2002 .o 2006.• Boam of Directory Lisbon Main Sireci. Inc., Lisbon. NM; 200S<2012:-
• Economie Reiiru^urmg Conmiiuce.of Lisbon Main Sirm; Inc.. 2002.prcsem
• Mcmbri ofGnmie Suic OistaiKe.LcvningiNciH-nil:, 2002-2004

REFKReNCXS

Profesjiuna! rrfereneciiihill i|e produ.-cd upon requrji and prejen.ed a. li.ne ofin.ervie.s'.



(^rald F. Milllken. Jr.

Executivo Summaiy.

Enihusia^. dedicated end hardworlcing' professionaii otTering over',20 ;^rs of
broad-biased experier>ce In Project Direction, policy and procedure! deyelc^ment,
1r8[nino-& dev^pmenl. budget adrninistralior) and .business operations within fast-
paced environment

Exoertence:

Trt-County Cornmunlty'-Action Program, inc.
PrtKirem Managsr I Director: WeatheHu'tton A Employment Programs

NH

4-1-1310 present'

Prdyl^ teadership and oyerKight (o progrem's'^)eratlons. budgets arid reporting; •
Coordltute'and Iru^rate'p'rograms'.actMties..
Mire,-sipervfM and manage stefr.' inc^ng in'-tvouse.and.tlineram employees.
Prepare.-gmnts and proposals.
Ddvelop. preparpahd Imple'mdht program budgeis,.narratiyes.
Rovfew and reooncOa.program ̂ ndal reports'for reimbursement.
Interact-vdth program monitors, outside auditors; F^ral agency auditors artd others iri
reyi^ of pr^rem actMles, cbn^lance and financial acoount^iiHy
Oevdpp n^ programs and tending strearro m approprtate..

TrKl.ouhty Cprfiinuntty Acbonl Prt^ram. Inc.
Crew Chief/ Sjtatd CertlfiM Eher^ Audltbf Bertih, NH 5^1-05 to 4-1-15

NorthemiExpreas Eatery, ti>c. North Con^y, NH
Prostderrt I Ccfteral Manager- 11-1-2002 to 5^15-2005.

.  Estirhated food and beveragrcoste; reciuisllipnlr^;and purchaj^'g'supptes
Assisted subordinates in idehtifyihg end resdving probtems.
Conferred with food, preparation ah.d'olher personnel to plan menus end' related
activities.

Directed hiring end assignment.pf 'personnel.
Irtvestig^ed and rosotved food quatity;and service.complaints.
^intain^ ali.recordsiehd produced reports.

. Executed daily operations d're'^uraht management.

Hatfiald-Reynolds Electric aniES,- l.rK-;.Company Phoerilx, AZ
Project Manager ^.15T2000 tb. l6'30-^2
Applied knovitodge'rof.the construction trade In the dally opemtipn of'duties.
Reviewed,proj^ prppcisd^^ to determine time framei funding limitations, procedure
for. Accomptishihg p^jed, staffing requirenMlhts'and alldtmenl.of available resources
to various phases of prdects.



SOEnterprbes; Inc. Lakp Haveou CKy, AZ
Protident I Genera/Managor 6-1>19M.to.5-16*2000
Purchased ARTISAN ELECTRIC. INC. and the name.
Cbntmcted to perfoirn specrTied obnsiruction work across the state trf Artzona.in
accordance ii^h archit^e ptans, biueprints. codes and other spe^ications.
Estimatedcosta .ofmateria.ls, labor and use of equipment required to furiil provtsiohsof
contred and prepared bids.
Conferred with clients to negotiate terrra Cjf contract.
Assisted subordinates in identifying and resolving'problenis.
Oer^h'strated effedi^'presentatiari skills.

Education:.

NHTl Concord
Associates Degree In.Electronic Techr>ology 1965
Thwry

l.aconia
Eiectrical Systems irt8tallation'& Maintenance, 1986
Required for Joume]^en eledricel testing.

Additional Training:

8 CUE tratriing coufM for Grant wmting for non* pronts.To enhance my position on the
board d at ChBdren Unbnited. Inc'.
SuccessfuDy compieted't^'s prestigious 'Six SIGMA' rnanagemerit course in 2001
Whle Empl^d with
Matfield-Reynolds Qedhc an lES'. ho. Company Phoenix,AZ.
Successfutly cornpteted training cburses arid seminars fbr;iead safewod practices.
asbestos awareness. dSHA 30. CPR.jslectrtca] code updates.
Successfutly completed Business managerried ciasses In AZ
During the 1995-2001.
Successfully corhpleted trainino end testing to be e NH.Stale certified Erieray Auditor
.in.2006. ■ '

Community:

Board merhberChildreniUntirnited. Inc.. Conway NR'Non-ProTit*
Board member Beriin Revitalikat.ipn Committee. Bettiri NH *Non- Profti"
Past member of the advisory board.and:o>^esignef for tha'Myolonic Dystrophy
FoundatiohsTirst'webslte.

Piwlpus o^er and wabmaslerfor the Myotonlc Dystrophy Informatibn website.

License:

Held an Electdcal Journeyman llcen» NH
Held an Electrical Contrador LIdehM AZ

References:.Avei!eble upon requed-



N^IhaniLBilLs.

PR0FESSIW41 SUMMARr.i>nd SiCJLlS

Business Professional With experience and ovcrsite of Financial, Quality' Assurance and Operations
cortiponents for small arVO mid-size businesses and organizations. Professlona!, .flexible vviih proven
analytical skills, Pemonstrated record of effeaive problem solving, sound business judgement and
custorT>cr service.

SusintSS.Oevtlopmeni Planninga Budjeiing
-  GXAP&..ROHA

Asset Henftgement

Eifteftflye daihr use or MJciotoft.Excel
Contract Ncgotiatiort. Adminjsiraiion 6 Compliance

PROFESSIONAL gXPREtENCE

&a(( end Sub-contiaaor i-tanagement
Cvfiomci SciVicc'a Cfieni ftdaiiom

CertiTicate, LEAN Sn Sigma Green Befi. USM -2016
Centficate; Project Management', UW 20M

Inside Production Menager

May 20.16 • December 2018

Inside Production l-lanager responsible'for managing scheduling and dose out of dry'tMisemcnt
systems Installs,

. LiaHoii Mih hipfrieowrref ihrougl^ut scttedoJlng. install arid cioscout processes. Liaison with sate learri end Outsttc
PrbduciJpn Manager tp ensure proposal, instailaUon and material cons met tlicm expectations, conioany standards
aod'wairanty requirements for dry Oasemcnt systcinj.

Prpject Manager

^ii 20l7 - April 2018

Projea Manager responsible for managing residential home cpnsirurtion process throughout the
planning, scheduling, material procurerhenl and construction processes.

• Liaison tdhomeowne.i throughout entif«;confl'uctionprocessfromconwacisfgningioclosirig. Wceiciy teiephone
. uptoie and change order cstimete and mirwgcment. Halni^ manci sctsteuie on Buiidet Trend projw managcnieo;
software. Schedule $ub<ontractdf$. Jnspect work to project spec.i isiuc rework and approve irtvolces for payment.
Job con oversiie. ihateiiab ordering'and inventory management.

DJirector, Housing and Energy Services September 2009 - November 2016

Business,-Fiscal, Operational and Corhpliance.responsibility for-federally funded programs that provide
home energy and emergency assistance, HQS home repair, and home efTicieno'-and insulation
upgrades to income eligitjie hoijseholds in Curnberland and York.Gounty, Maine.

.• Oversee.an sub-grantee contraaual resporrsloiiiiles of cilem Intalte, certiilcation and oene.'ii oeierminaiion, program
tntegrity ̂ ,coRtpilancc lor Federal DtiHS tliHEAP Grani, providing home heating bencAu'i'o'approkimatciY 3,500
torv-iftcomc .Cumberland Count V households-annually.

• Ch-crsce ai aspccts-oi Program and Proj«i Manageihem iricKroing; ciieru eligibility ano program compfiatkc of nmi 5
Licensed Agexy Lending for HUO. MSHA. I-Whe PECO and Cwntbciland cbonh- Corrinuiniiv Devckayneni. Program
rundlng'fgp^ed home repair, home lenovaiion and enogy^ci'ncicwy upgrades ol v-ety io»v.io rwJetaic income
housettoTds in Cumtctland and rort; Counry.

i Cenuatt. Opetati-jnai and Fiscal o-.-crslghi of Fcdcrat DOE ai^dOMHSk'.-.-income wentherbaf-cwi, Central neat
(mpim'crnetM and E'frciexy r^iaute Energy Consc.-vailon r^ugianis.



Business.Manager
2006 - 2009

Manage all business activity for rational caialoger prm-iding Office of the Registrar course catalog
and olher legaiiy binding ̂ urnents to colleges and unlversjties In the United States and Canada

. Accoonu eavoMe. Accou^u RtceWabte, General Ledger. Pa>TO0, finantiai and lax Reponing.

• Cash Rov/ and Une tS Credit managemcw.

AccounUng A^ociate - 2006

.ResporislbJe for business office functions .of AP/AR and Payroll for non-profit agerxy. In this position I
was accounting Uaison for a variety of programs among others, and was responsible for accurate ' '
payrod procttslng for departments that operated 24/7/365. I streamlined-payroll process and systems
that optimrzed digital assets for workflow ar*J Information retrieval for tax and audit purposes.-

Retail CitslOQ arid.Advertising Photographer j 99g .

Managing studio'photographer for New Engta.nd's iirst.digllal commercial photography studio
responsible for proj^ management, process wortcflow. and capacity and demand management
Oycr»w the photography and pre-press productiori for first digitally produced LL8EAN retail catalog.

Retail Catalog and Advertising Photographer J9g7 . 599^

Product advertising and retail catalog photography for local and regional companies serving a
national marlcei including; LL Bean, Cole Haan, Eastern Mountain Sports, Brookstone and others.

Education

Bachelor of.Arts, Geography
Unh-Cftky oT Maine, Fatmingion, I9S3

Accounting, Rrojfect Management and Human-Resources
iSwerttfy of SoOthero.rtjinc. ongoing

C6wMU.Vltv'^FBVH-f

fllddeford School Committee, -Vice Chairman

• Co-Clwiiiiiaiv CurrkiXunvCwnmineo; Riimce Comniinee; P«Kinn« Gonmiitlce; Cliici Neooii«:of iCoUectK*
Ei^ed 10 consecuiive 2 re«i ie.nis« 2006 bou 2006: S«,yed.Owing't>cno<J ih#i «i,ooi jy.sie.ii

.onOenook B.S30 mfiion doUzi ienowaj«n of Oktoefcxd High School.

Cehi/al America Volunteer work
HcicCia, Cosu Rka i.Son Dcintdbw) Guaienuio

•  10 Coa# Rki in 2006 R Gu«tcm«id in 2038 »\hn 4 volumcei iconi Id huiu 4 limoci freme \'OC4:;on*J ccnicf 4fv}
iflUAlion system.

RtfciVKifS AvOAiKC up(tn /rci<yv
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Leone. ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board of Diredors pr pwviSja^uAsa)^
TrkJbunty Communhy.Actioh Program,ilnci and Affiliate; ^CftRTinEDniffltiCAOpi^^^
Berlin. New Hampshire wolfeboko. ♦^NORTh'COW

•00\'ER;*.C0N'C0RD:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

■Roport on. tho-Financiaf. S'tatemants
We have' a,ud}ted_:the-accpmpahyirig,.w^ fih'ahcial staterhents-df Tn-Cbunty Community
Action Pfogrn'm.. in'c. and;Afifiliate (Ne'w'Hampshire rionprofit organizations); .which comprise the^
consolidated statements: of fihaticial ,position as of June SO, 2019 and 2018, the :rel.ated
consolidated statements. Of. cash flows. an.d'fMnctippal expenses for the/years then ended,, the-
related .consolidated statement: of admtie;s W year ended Juhe 30, 26.19 and the'.related
notes'to the consolidated fjh'ancial statem;ents.

Mahagemeht's^R^^ for-fhe Financial Statements
Management Is respo.rtsj.tile--for the preparation and fair prese'htatiori of^these. coh'solidatefd
firtancial state.menls in acoocdanee:.With accounting, principles, generally, accepted' In the Uriited'
States of America; this ihcludesU.he design. Implementation, and malntenance/ofintemal'contror
relevant to the pmpamtiori sarid fair-'preseritation of-consolidated financial statements'dhat are:
free;ffort) m'atefiai misstaterrieht'. whether due'to. fraud -or error.

Auditors'ResROnslblfity
durresponsiliility''isttb" express an opihidhioh these •consolidated financial slate'ments based oh
our.au'dit. We! conducted Our- audit:ih accordance with.auditing standards/generally, accepted in,
the .United Slates-lof'.America and" !ihe-standards app.licabie .to. financial .au& in
GovemmentrAo0iog:$t'andards^^^^^ COfhpti-oHer C.erieralof.ih'e tJrtit^ States. Those
standards require -that we plan 'and.;perf6nnh .(he audit to .obtaih' reasonable assurance '.about:
•whether the cOrispIidated financial statements are^free from material missta'tement. •

■An audit Involves- perfbrmlhg procedures to obtain audit evidence. :abp,ut -the. arhouhts". .and
disdosures In -the .-cpnsplidated 'fjn.an'dal. .statements, 'pie-, procedures /selected depend vbn the
/auditors* jud.g'em'enl!, .Includiri^ the,-assessment: of'the risks of material mlsstatementipf, ih.e
consolidated financial! statemerits, whether due to "fraud or error: In making those, risk
assessrhents', .the. auditor Considers internal :cpntrpl relevant to the .entjty/s: preparation: arvd fair-
presentation' of the -.con.sotidat'ed fir>ah'ciai statements' 'in- order to; desigii. audit p.rooedu'res .that
;af0 .apprppfiaje; in :l.he ti.rcumstances, but not. for the,purpose of expresslhg an opinion- on the
e.ffeciiveness of\(he entl^'s internal .cOnirdL .Accordihg'l^^^ we express; no such opinion, ./fui-a.udit
olso; inClddes :evdluatih'g the- appropriateness of accounting poiicies used anij th'e
reasonableness of significant, accouritihg -estimates made by management, ;a.s.. .well as
evaluating the overall presentatiomof the consolidated fi.nanciabstatementsi.

vy©.believe; that, the, audit^eyidence w'e.ihave obtained Is,sufficierit-and.appropriate to.provide/a
basis for our audit-.opirilorii



Opinion
In pur opinion, the cohsoliddted financial statements' referred to abbve present fairly, in -all
material respects, the .consolidated financial .position ofTri-Counly Community Action Program.
Inc. and Affiliate as of June '30, 2010 and 2018, and its. Consolidale'd cash flows tor the years
then ended,, arid the changes in its net assets for the year ended'June 30. 201.9, in accordance
with accounting principles gerierajly accepted i.n the tjnited States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Informption
We haye previously audited'Tri-Gounty .Qommunity Action; Program, Inc. and Affiliate's :2018-
consolidated financial-ataternents, and we expressed an unmodified audit'opinion on'tho;s.e
consolidated, finaricial statements in our report dated October 19, 2018. In our opinion, the
sunrtrnarized comparative information presented .her'ein ;as of and for the. year ended June 30,'
2018, Is consistent, in aD material respects, with the audited consolidated financial -statements
from which it .has-been .derived.

Other information
Our audit was- c.onducfe;d for the purpose of fdrining an opinion oh the cohs'otidated financial
staterhehts as a'^ole. The accompariying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Cocfe of.Federal R' eguia.tipns: {6fR) Part 200, Unifomi AdmiriistfativjB'
Requirements. Cost Pnncipies, and Audit-Requirements for Federal Awards, Is presented for
purposes of'additional analysjs and is not a. req.uired part of -.the' .cons;ol.ida'ted financial,
.statements.. Such information is' .the. responsibility of management and was derived'fmm and
relates.dire'ctly-to. the underlying accounting and other records us;ed to prepare .the consd.iidate.d
financial statements'. The.-information has been subjected to the auditing prot^ures applied in
the .audit .of the consolidated .finan'cial .statements-and certain additional procedures, Including
compa'ring and' reconciling such inform.atjon- directly to the uriderlying -accountirig and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial stalenients or to the cCnsblldated financial
-statements theriislelves. 'and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing stand.ards
generally accepted' in the: IJnI.ted State.e of America. In our opinion, the informatiori is fairly
stated. In all material respects. In rel8tion''.to the. consolidated financial statements-as'a vyhole.

Otli.er Reporting Required by. Government Auditing Standards
In ;accordance with Government .Auditing Standards, we haye al^ issued o.ur report dated
October 21. .20.19. on our cpnslderaton of Tri-Cpunty Community Action Program. InC.'s iiiterrial
coritro} over financial.repQrtiWg and On our tests of-its'cdrTipliarice with certain.provislons pf'l.aws',
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that.report; Is; to.
describe the scppe- of our testing Of internal .coritrOI over finaricial reporting and compliance and
the-results of that ̂ testing,, and riot to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-Gounty
Community Action Program. Inc.'s. internal control over financiaf reporting or" oh' cdfripliance..
That report is. an integral part.of'-an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards In-consideririg TrI-Courity'Community Action Program, Inc.-s .internal control over
financial reporting and compliance..

Octob0r.21.-2O19
Ndrth.Gonway, New Hampshire.



TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACHON PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTSIQF FINANCIAL POSITION
:JUNE.30. 2019 AND 201B

ASSETS

e^RRE^^ ASSETS
G8Sh;ahd cash equivalents
Restricted cash

ApciQiUiits re^vabie
Prop'ert/heid^for ̂ le
Pledges receivable
Invenlpfies
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets.

PROPERTY

•  Property and .equipment
Less accurhulatek) deprectalibn

Property, net

OTHER-ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Demand note payable
Current portion of long, term debt
Current portion .of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable.
Acchjed compehsaled absences
Accrued salaries

Ac^ed expenses
Refundable adyarices
bther liabllilies

Total cuirent liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of cuoenl porti.on.
Capital leaM obiigaUons, net of ̂ riant portion

total Dabilities

NEt.ASSEtS
Without dorior restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL liabilities AND NET ASSETS

4.077:446

■$ 10.983.433

2019 2018

S  1;40d.7S0 $  1,329,038
583.963 380,902

1.274,083 1.156.657
47.000 .

231.161 212.207
65.686 87,569
34.037 25.640

-3,656,880 3.192.013

12;0a6.152 12.812.689
(5;178.53S) (5.203!324)

6:'907.617 .  7.609:365

418,936 325.863

% 10.963.433- S 11.127:241

S  ■ 516.022
148;449 142.733

4.'876 4.445
221,571 237-.276'
204,079 ,203:121
216;952 187.508
e9;524 131.886

197;i57 191.069
598.195 387.168

1.674;797 2.001.230,

5.227,835 5.376.937
l35S .8.226

6.905.987 7.383.393

3.399,192 2,926.057
678.254 .  eitjGi

3.743.846:

$ 11.127;241

See Notes to Consolidated Flnancial Statembnts

3



TRI-COUfntY COMMUMtry ACTION PROGRAM. IMC. AND AFFILIATE'

CONSOLIDATEDISTATEMEMT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR.ENDEO JUNE'3'o. 2019

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED"COMPARATIVE IKFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant and oontraHs'

ProoQin funding
UtlUty pibgrBrhs
ln<l(M ebhtilbUlorn.
Corttrtbotloru

Fyndi^slng
Ranurinooma
Intaraat Inoomo

(loss) ̂lin on disposal of propar^
Loss oh Vwrtta'down of prepady for ula
Othdr.rtvanua

'Total ravenuat and'other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total ravenues.'Olhar supporL and

hat Bssats raleaM li^ mstrict^

FUNCTiONAL.EXPENSES^
.Proi^m-^rylces:;

Aponcy Fund
Haad Stan'
Guardianship'
Transdortaten
Vdin^r
Wdficfofce Davploprnont
AlcoM and OOier OruDS
^CarrM County Oantst
Support Cantor.
Honiaiass
Enargy andCdmmuhlty Oavatopmera
Eldar

Housl/^ Serylcas

Total prograih sarvfcas

Suppot^ Actfvidos:
Oanaral arid .'admlnlstrativa -

Fuhdralsing

Total suppordrig aetMUas

Total'functlonal axpwuas

chan'oe.in net a^'ets

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF -YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Vinthout.Donor
RastTletlons

S  14.074,008
1,167.509

1,287;i03
47.7.167

.'230.966.
39.303

62S;046

643

(32,692)
(2^.492)
i96.3M

17:609,745

540.643

16.3S0;386

950,639

2.45li96
767.24*1
916.089

t18;40e
.354,263

747;474

■391.650
714.066

7:768.660
■1.462.613

172.8'52

.16:835,151

1,032,207
9.895

1;042.102

I7.877.2M

473.135

2.926:0S7.

S  31399.192

With Donor
Rcstrletlooa

S  401.106

401.106

(540.6431

(139.537)

(139:537.)

817.791

2019 -2016
Total Total '

S  14.475".114- $ .14.m086
1.187.509 1.259.037
i:2B7;T03' 1.07S.301

.477.187 351.187
-230,968: 39S.22S

39.303- S9.S36
626,046 679.112

643 346
(32S92) 46.487

(255.492) -

196.364.

16.210.851 18.263.317

16.210.851 18.263.317

950.639 922.701
2.451*.^ 1461.916

.767124.1 ' 7601009
916.069 879.729
118.406 122.941
3541263 394.252

- 444;set
747.474 ^42,637
391.650 278,172

- 714:066 577.783
7.768.560 7.480.943
1.46i2.613 i:i42.ei8

172:652 ■1761511

ie.&35:'l51 16.3d2.903

1.032.207 1.102.448
9.895 0.023

1.042,102 1.110.471

17.877.253 17.413.464

333..598 849:853

3.743.648 2.893.995

6781254 S 4.077:446 S 3.743:648

Saa'Netos'te Consolldatad FliiahclBj S^tamar^
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TRI.COUNTY CQMMUNrTY-ACT»QN PROGRAM. tNC: AND AFPtLIATE

CONSOtlOATEO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE Y^RS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVrTIES

.^dnga in net assets
AdKstniei^ to reconcile charioe in net assets to
net cash provided byopera'tioQ aictfviUes:

Depreciation

Loss (gain) on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property'held for sale

'(|ncrpase)'decreas.e (h assets:
Accounts receivabio

Pledgee receivable
In^^ntefies
Prepaid expenses
Resliidrt cash

Increase (decrease) ̂  liabilities:
Acootints. payaUe-
Accrued compensated-absences
Accrued salaries

Accnred expenses
Refundable advarrces

Other llabUUles '

NET'CASH PROVIDED BY OPERiATJNG ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESftNG.ACTIVITIES
Prooe^s frcfrn dlspbul of.p,ro'perty
F^chases of propertyand oquipim'ent.

NCT CASH (USED IN).PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITtES

Ci^H FLOyys;FR.OM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net repayment on demand note payable
-Repayment of .lohg-terrh debt'
Repa^ent of;capltal leaseobllgations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACtlVITIES>

NCT INCREASE IN .CASH.AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CA^ AMD CASH .EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid duri^ the yitr for
Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE.OP NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCINGACTIVrnES:

Propertydorraied

2010

$  333.598

447:669
32.692

255.492

.•(117:428)
(•1'6.954)
1.683

• 0.397)
(296.134)

(15.-70S)

,  058'
23.444
(4^364)

6.088
211.027

813.871

14i63
(95.588)

(81.305)

(516,022)
(140.386)

(4.446)

(660.654)

71.712

1.329.038

152.078

2018

S  849.853

463.463

(46.467)

1.7,0.337

(6.403)
(21.928)
19.705

235,922

(281.171)
(39.424)
('9.374)
24.261

(6,479).
(258.143)

1.092.152.

278.972

(141.335)

137.637

(00.412)
(311.983)

(4.056)

(408.451)

823;^

505,700

S  -1.^.750 $ 1 ■329.636.

182.514.

18.630

See Notee to Consolidated Financial Statements

5



•TR»;COUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION PBQGRAM tWC

•CONSOLIOATEb STATEMENT OF FUNCTlONAI
' FOR THE YEAR ENOEP JUWg'.lfl. M

CtntrAl'i'
AfltntYfwntf ■Heed I Tolsl Admiriistrallve ■.FtrndrHiInq TotsI

Oliwt
S' '199.241 *  i 5.462.305 S  596.457 S -  $ 6.058.-782

Payrofl iaxesand btntflti 49;':^ ■y . •1.413.250 "163.274 V;S78.S24
Auistanca io.cli*ftts ' 6;7te.'3l4. 5.786.314
Cbn»ums6li'r(up()0*t 3.4oe '046;305 11.436 857,741

Space costs'end renuiJs 7:«9 1" .. 523.719 66:566 . 'S9a287

bepredsiion expense. tsd.U) ^9. -447.669, -3.157' . 450,826
ifvkind expended • ■477~167 477.167
Consutients end conirecton .20.400 -222:316; 16.029- ;238.347
Udlitbs IM.297 161 378.636 5.708. '3M.3;i4
Trbv^ end mattings ■11.024 '^2: 297:607- 20:789- 318.398

Other direct progrem.costs 2.53S «4 157.696. 9;22S 9.695 176:818

Fbciil end'edirtnistrath^ 10.617 731 1Cb;l'47 94;740- I97-.867
BuOctng end growtds matntehsnce .93.906 594 i79.34'6 30 .l;79.378
Interest'exjK'nse 117.SaS' 152:965. .953; 153.918
VeiUbe txiwnte 2.747 199.9651 • 199.905

insursnee 56.67i 316 '69.016 -3a772' 119.788

Ivlaintertence oi.equiptrwnt'end'tentei 562 331 ^.'909' "12.647 96.556
6.265 •13.617- 422' 14,239

rot^ a'pK! £xpvit4t »0.639 2«152 I6.63$.:isr V.032.207- 9.695 17.877.253
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INC. AND AFFliHATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND.2018

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARV OF SIGNIFrCANT ACCOUNTiNG POLICIES
Orqahlzation and Prmcibles of Consolidation

The" cbhsolidalfed'' financial, statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Corhmunity Action i?rogram, Inc. and its affiliate. Cornerstone. Housing North. Inc;
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Prpgrarti, Inc. cpotrols 100% of the voting power of Corrierstone Housing North. Inc.
All .significant intercompahy items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. tri-Cbuilty Cornmunity Action Program. Inc. (the
Organization) Is a New Hampshire non-profit corpofatioh that operates a wide,
variety of pprnmunlty.service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
cOritracfs from yarious federal, slate, and local agencies. Gomerstone Housing
Ndrth, inc. fa New Hampshire nonprofit cprporation) was incorporated under the
laws of :the State of New' Hampshire for the acquisitioo, cpnstruclipn and operation
of community-based housing for the elderiy.

Nature of activities

TTte Organization's programs cbhslst of the following:

Agency

Tri^Cpurity CAP Administration providfes Central program rhahagehient
support: and ovefsighl to the Grganizatiorfs- many individual programs.
This: includes planriirig and budget- development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR.services, legal.and audit seiVjces, IT support,
management support; financial support and central policy development.

Tri-Ckjiihty CAP Admiriistratlon is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.. Board of pireetprs and Its prpgram.s,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements rtiade by the Board to.,
funding ̂ ur:ces arid vendors.

.Other responsibilities inplude the rnanagemeri.t and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services .Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Hbad Start provides comprehensive services to low-Income children, arid
their families. Head Start supports children's grovyth and development in a
positive teaming enylronrrient through a variety of activities as well, as
providing services, which Include in addition to early leamirig, health and
family well-being, Alf children receive health and deyelopmenf screenings,,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are. supported iri achieving their own goals, -such as- ho.using
stability, continued education, and finahciafstability'..



Prograrns support and strengthen parent-child relationships-as their child's
priniary ed.uc'ator. Head Start staff wor1< as partners with parents to Identify
and provide Individualized activities that support their child's growth and-
development.

Tri County Co.fnmunlty Action Head Start serves 217 children in Carroll.
Coos & Grafton counties In 9 locations with 13 center-based classrooms
and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organizatlpn's'Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the yulherable populalioii of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally HI. traumatic brain injury,
and the .ejderiy suffering from'Alzheimer's, dementia, arid multiple medical'
issues) who need a-guardian and who have no farnily member or friend
vvjlling, able.^qr suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 414-
Individuals. Additibrial. services include, eonseryajo.rsh.ip, representative
payee-ship, federal .fiduciary services, benefit management service.s end
private probate acco.unting services.

Transportation

The -Orgariizatlori's transit program provides various transportation
services: pubiic bus routes, door-:tb-dopr service by request; long distance
medical travel to m'edieal facilities, outside- our regular service -ar^a, and
special trips'for the elderly ;to go shopping and enjoy other activKies that
are located outside the regular service are.a. The Organization's. fleet.oT17
wheelchair laccesslble vehicles offers 'transport.atipn options to the elderly
and disabled, as-Weil as tO'the general public.

Volunteer

The Gdos Cburity Retired &• Senior Volunteers Program (R'SVP) maintains
a rriinimum group of 394 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 28.7
actively served during the last reporting period.. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and tinie with over 60 Ibbal hori-pfbfit arid
publi.c. agpocies. thrQ.ughput, Cops County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet me needs of thejr constituents. Our yplunteers.donate
o'ver 46i764; hbufs yearly.

. Workforce DeveloDmen t.

The Organization, is assisting transitional and displaced workers: as they
prepare for new jobs; and also assisting currently-empipyed workers to,
gairi the;skllls requlred for better jobs. ■



The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire'.s Unified State
Plan for Wof1<force Development, in line with the federal Wbrkforbe
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide" tempdraiy .assistance for needy families (TA,NF)
recipients, with 20^30 hours per week of training in the .areas of employrhent
skills, computer skills, .and business -experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

:A!cohof & Other DruasiAOD)

Services provided through the AOD prograrh included assisting the
alcoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases:
Crisis Intervehtipn. Sgljfiety .Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to
appropriate treatrhent facilities.

The: Besidential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provided
cherrilcally dependent individuals with the fundamental tools, of fecoVfefy,
including .educational clajsses, group and individual counseling, work: arkj
recreational therapy, arid atteridarice at inrhouse and, comniunity-based
alcoholics anonymous; and narcotics ahohynibus meetings. The AOD
program aj.so offered.assistance with its impaired driyer programs.

Effective October 1, 2017, the Organization is no longer responsible for the
Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD) program. The grants for the. program vyere.
transferred to North (Country Health Consortium (NCHC); as.they tbok over the.
program: The Friendship. House was sold to Affordable, Housing £ducatidri arid
Developrtient (AH^p).

Carroll Couritv.Denial

The Tamvyorth Dental Center (the Center), offers high quality oral heal.th;
care to children vyitb NH Medicaid coverage. The Orgariization also serves
uriinSured 'and undennsured children and adults using a slidirig fee scale
that offers income-liased dlscoutits for care, The Center accepts most
common dental insurances for those who have cofPniercial dental
insurance .coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Cerifer, Schppr
.Sm.ljesi offers oral health education, screening; treatment and refe'rrals'for
treatrherit to over 1,000 children in 9 schools In the vicinity .of the Center.

Support Center

The prgariizatiori's Support Center at Burch House provides direct servl.cG
and shelter to victi.ms and surylvors of domestic, and sexual violence arid
stalking in tsiortKern Graflpn ^Cbunty. Support Center services ai^.
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.. They "inc.lude: prtsls
intervention; supportiye counseling; court, hospital arid policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter:; siippoft groups; corrirpu.rilty
education and outreach;; violence prevention programs for studerifs;
Infortnatldn. referrals and. assistance accessing other community
resources.
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Homeless <■
Hpftieless;sefvices includie an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to. prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe; affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space foir homeless clierits..

The Organizatipo also provides' some housing, rehabilitation services to
help preserve, older ho'usirig stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach
Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and eiectric assistance through
dired pay to yehdprs or a discount on the.clierit's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participahts access, to energy assistance programs and
other .emergency services. The offices' provide jnfprmatipn to the
Organization's, clients about other programs offered,, as well' as other
programs available through other o.rganlzations in the community:

LoW'Income Wieatheriziatioh
The NH weatherizatiori program helps- low-ihcbme familieSi. elderly;
disabled-, small chjl.dren and individuals- lower their hOme energy costs;
increase their health, safety; and. ;cPmfort; .and improve the qualify-of living
while improving housing dock ..th eommunitie.s around .the state utilizing
;energy cost saving, health and safety and carbpri Ipvyeri.ng measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Eider
The drganiization's'elder p.rograrn. p.rovid.es;.senior meals; In 1-5 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on yvheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education end related
programming-. The ,Cops CSounty ServiceUnk Aging & Disability Resource
Center essists with person-centere.d counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long.-ete.rm care counseling -services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services
Cornerstone Housing North, InC; is subject to a Project Rental Assistance
Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. (HUD), and a. significant portiph of their rental income, is
received from HUD.

The Organizatiph includ.es :a- 'T2rurilt apartment'complex In Berlin, New
Hampshire, for the eldeHy: This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rerital charges,
and operating methods.
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The Organization has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S., Office of Mahagemerit and Budget Uniform
Quidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal RegOlatiOhs (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Adrpinistr,aliye Requirements, ■ Qosi Prindiple's and .Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program.

Method of accounting

The coh^lidated firiancial statements of Tri-Gounty Community Action Prograrh,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance, with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of' Americaj as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASG). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported wheri incurred without regard to the date, of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis.of presentation

The financial statements of .the-Organization have been p'repare'd in'.accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles .(US GAAP), which require-the
Organization to report .Information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the fdlio.wing net asset classifications:

Net assets without^donor restrictions Include net assets that.are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be, expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management, and board of
directors.

Net.assets with donor restrictiohs irrcjude .net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantofs.. Some donor restrictions :are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of tirge, Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated! the funds be m.dlntained in perpetuity.

.The Organization has,net .assets with ;dbri6r restri^lons of $678,254 and $817,791
at June 30,,2019 and 2,0.18. respectively. See Klote 13.

■ Contributibris

Contributions received are recorded-as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending, .on ,the existence anp/or nature, of any
donornmposed restrictions. Support that iS; regtricted is tepprted as an [ncreage In
net-assets without donor-restrictions If the- restrlictibn expires in'the "reporting; period
In which the contribution js recog.iilzed. All other donor restricted-contributioris are.
reported as net assets with donor restrictions; depending on the' nature of the
restriction. When a restriclioh expires (that is, vyheri a stipulated time restriction
ends, or purpose restriction, is accomplished),, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without dbnpr restrictions; and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable *are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end., Most of the receivables: are-amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies arid are based on reimbursement for
.expenditures made .under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable-balance represents amounts due from patients at Caftoir Cdiirity Dental
program, Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the.
dire^ Writeroff method; this is riot considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management ;se!ecls-accounts
to b.e vyritten off :afler analyzing p.as'l payment history, the age of the' accounts
receivable., arid cpilection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
len'gth of time outstanding. The Organization does not. charge Interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildirigs; eQM'pme.nt, .and improvements in excess of $'5.,000 and all
expenditures: for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materialiy prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Building's, equipment; and improvements are
.stated at co.st less accumulaied depreciation. IDepreciation is..provided -using the
straight-jiriemethod oyer the estimated useful lives of the retaled.assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual p.rogram is
charged directly to. the. related program. Depreciation expense for assets u^d by
more than, one program is charged to the prOgrafh based upon a square footage or
•other simijar allocation.

depreciation Oxpense related to administratiye assets .ls,ihc|u.ded in fhe Indirect cost
ppol and charged to. the programs In accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maihtenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets: are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 .to 8:5 years
Furniture and equipment . 5 to 15. years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cqrriers.tpne. Housing North, Inc.'s rents, are approved On an anriual basis by the
D^arlmeht of ;Housing and Urban Development. .Rental. Increases ar'e prohibited
without such, approval. The clients are charged rent equal to '30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department oif Housing and Urb.an Development.
Rent subsidies are. received: from the bepartment of Housing and Urban
Deyelop.ment for the difference between the" allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.
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Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded las refundable advances and recognized
•as revenue iii the period, in, which the. related tservice;s or- expenditure's are
perfofmed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met"
aggregated $1:97.157 and $191,069. as of June 30,2019 and ;2018,. respectively.

Nonprofit taxstatus:

The. Qrganizatioh is a poMor-profif Section 50i,(c)(3) organization, in accordance
with, the Internal Revenue Code, It has t)een classified as an organization that: is: not
a private foundatlon ,under-the .Internal Revenue Code arid, qualifies for a .charitable
.contribution deduction for individual donors. The-Organization files information
retums In the United States. The Organi^tlon's Federal Form 990 (Return^ of
Grgarilzatiqn; Exenipt from Inco.me Tax), 'is subject to. .examination by the IRS,
gerierally for three years after if is filed. The Organization is. no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 201.5.

The Orgariization follows FASB.A$C. Accounting forUn'cenaintyJh Jncotne Taxes,
which 'elarifies the. aecountipg fo.r uncertainty- 'in income .ta>:es and prescribes a
recogriitioni threshold and nleasureihent attribute for-firjancia! statement recognitibri

. and; measurement- of tax positions taken or expected to be takeri in .a tax return,.
The -Orgariizatlpn does not believe they have^ taken uncertain tax positions,
therefbi:ei,a liablli.ty fpr Income taxes associated with.Oricertain tax positions lias hot
been recognized.

Du.e to .changes, in the.Tax law in the 2017 Tax Cuts .and Jobs Act,, th.e Organization
Is: subject tO; file an yr;ire1ated Business Income. Tax Return for onallowed experises
for the year ended June .30', 20,19. Thes.e expenses .fall under thO qualified taxable
:frlnge benefits, the total tax due for the year ended June 30, 20i 9 Is approximately
$8.90,0.

.OormetstoiTe Housing North, Inc. is exempt :fro'm income taxes urider Section
501(c)(3) of' the- Internal .Revenue C.ode, The Iriteinal Revenue .Service- h§s
deteitnlned the Orgahizatiori to be other than a priyafe foundation within the
meaning ;of Sectibri 509(3).

Retirement plan

Th^ .Organization riiaintairi.s: a tax-sheltered annuity plan under tbej provisions; of
Section .463(6) of the. Tntem^il Reveriue Cqde.; All ernployees are eligible to
.'contribute to the plan begrntilng-oh the date they^arq empbyed. Each employee,
rnay elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordarice- v/ith limits;
OllQwed in .the Intemal Revenue Code. Employer -coritributibhs. are at the
6i;gahizatipri,'s3nriual discretion, In January.2,015. e.rriployer contribution payments
ceased. th'efOfore as of Jurie 3Q, -2019 and 20T8v ftiere, were no..discretionary
contributions, recorded. Further information can be. obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements..
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Donated servic'es and Qoodis
Gontribuiions of donated services that create or enhance nbri-finaneial assets or
that, require- specialized skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not
provide.d by donation are recorded at their fajr va.l.ues in the period .received.

Contributed nonce'sh assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how Jong the assets must be used, the contiibiitions are recorded
as riet, assets, with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictiohs.

Donated property and equipment

Donations, of property and equipmenl.are recorded as support at their estirnated fair
. value .at the. date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a .specific
purpose. Assets donated With explicit restiictions regarding their use and
Qpntributipns of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as ̂net'assets-with donor restrictions. Absent donbr stipulations regarding
how Ibng those dona.ted: assets rnust be maintained, the Qrgani^tion reports
explra'tibhs of donor restrictions wheri the donated or acquired .assets- are. piaoed in
service .-as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclasslfies net assets with
donorTeetrictiQns'to net .assets without donor restrictions at that time.

■Promlses-to Give
(!k)ndltiorial.:promlses to give are not recognized in the finariclal staternents until the;
conditions are eubstantialiy met: .Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be, collected within one year are recorded at the; net realizable value,
U.ncpr:ic!]fiQnal promises to. give that are. expected to. be colleoted in :more than one
year are; recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value: of their
Yuture' :easih flows. The discounts on those arhourils are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of'the discounts is included In contribution revenue. In the absence of
donpf sUpulations ,to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods;are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncpllected more than
one year alter their due dates are written off unless the dp.nor%; indicate that
payment is rrierely postponed. When a restriction expires; net assets, with donor
restrictions are; reclassified to net assets without dOnorrestrictions.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018. there, were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipuiations, but restricted in regards to tirhing, and therefore classified a.s.net
assets with, donor restrictions In the amount of $231,161 and $212,207,
resp.ectiyely. This amp.unt was included in grants: and contracts on the
Consolidated Statement of Activities.
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Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in confomrilly with accounting principles
generally aceepte.d In the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assurnptions that affgct the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures; of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported arhounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could, differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Godification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures, of Fair Value of
Fihahciai Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its.
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
Instruments, which consists of cash, accounts recelyable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value; because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments;

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and Other activities have been
summarized on:a fuhctipnaj basis in.th.e statement of activities. Accordlhgiy, certain
costs have t>een alibcated arriong the program services and s.upporling activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various
progfarns .arid supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend On each function as reported on a timesheel,

, Wbrfcers Comoensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each, ernpjpyee and allocated to the various program
based upOri'the time employees spend on each function as. noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to. a leave poOl and is ailocated tO each prpgfarn as a
pereehta^e of,total salaries

Fringe Beriefiis are Charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These, expenses-
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation, the pool is aHocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense Is allocated to each program .based upon speCiric;
assets; used by the program and Is reported as depreciation expense on the.
•statements-of.functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable .to assets: vyhlch are used by
multiple, programs. Buildings are priniarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, Insu.rance, utilities, building maintenance, etc.. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.
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•  Insurance: automobile insurance Is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage;- building liability insurance iS allocated to programs based on square
footage o.f'the buildings; and insurance for furniture arid equipment-is. allocated
to programs using the bo.ok- b.asis of the Insured assets.

The remalniha shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool ar«j
are allocated to each prbgiam based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, generai liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to .a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits end other Indirect, .costs .to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July i, :26l8. received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 1^.50%. Per the
agreement Nvith the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
drganization's-fiha! rate for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 11,45%... The actual
rate for the. year ended June. 30, .201,9 was* approximately 10.44.®/o, which Is
allo.wable because it Is .l.ess than the proyisional rate.

Advertisiriq policy

The Organization uses advertising to lrifoim the-comrnuhity about the prpgra.ms it
offe.rs and the availability of services. Advertising, is expensed as incurred. Tbe total
cost of advertising for .the years ended June 30. 2019 and 201:8 was. $.11,698 and
$18,6.16, respectively.

Debt issuance Costs

During'the year ended J.une 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectiyeiy adopted the
provisions of the- FASB Accounting Standards .Update" (AS.Uj No*. 2015-03,
'Simpili^ing the Pfesehtatiori Qf Debt Issuance Costs:' The ASU is limited to
siitiplifying the presentation of :debt issuance costS; and the recpgriltion and
measurement guidance for debt: issuance, costs Is not effected by the ASU.
Amo.ilization expense of $887 has been included with' interest expense in the
consolidated staternents. of functibnal expenses for both 2019 and 201.8.

NewAccountihq.Pfohouhcem'erit

On August 18, 2016; FASB Issued ASU 2016-1.4, Not-fofrProfit Erititle.s ;(Toplc 9.58)
- Presentajion qf Financial ^Statements of Not-for-profit Entities.- the update
addresses the .epmplexjty and understandability of net asset classificatiori,
deficiencies in irifortnation about liquidity and availability of resourc.es. and. the lack
of consistency in th.e type of information provided about expenses and:.Investment
return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to.all period^ presented.
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NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents, the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2019
and 2018;

2019 20;i6

Financial assets at year-end;
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1,400,750 $ 1,329,038
Accounts receivable 1,274,083 1,156,657
Pledges receivable 231.161 212.-207

Total financial .assets 2.905.994; 2.697:902

Less announts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with ;donor restnctions 678,254 817.791
Less net assets with time restrictions to be,
met in less thaha ̂ ear f348.631) (540.6431

Amounts not available within one year 329.623 .277.148

.Financial assets available to m.eet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 2.576.371 S 2.420.754

It' is the 0'rganizatio.ri!s goal, to rnajntain financial, assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses vyhich apprexima.tes. $2,786-,000 and $2,729,000 .respectively,
at June. 30, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE S. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and (^sh equivaiehfs consist oficash on hand, funds on depos.it:with fihancial
institutions, and Investrfients with original maturities of three, months or less. At
year .end and throughout the: year, the .drgahizalion:s Cash balances were
deposited with multipje .financial institutions. At June 30, 2019 arid 2018, the-
balances in interest and: non-interest-bearihg accounts were insured by.the FDIC up
to $250,000. At Juhe SOi 2019 and .2018, there .was approximately $1,750,000 .arid
$1,200,000, ofdeposits.held In excess of the FpIG limit, respectively. Management
belieyes the Organization is not exposed to ariy sigrilficahl credit risk ori cash and
cash e.quivajents.aod considers: this a nontial business risk.

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank, as- part of
the. loan .security, agreement disclosed, at Note 7. It Is required lb rnaihtain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the- US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of .June 30, -2019. :and 2018 was.;$20,010 and $19,980. respectively.
The. Organization has rn.ade all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30. 2019 and 2018. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the

Statements of Financial, Position.

The Organization iis required to. maintain a deposit a'ccount with another bank as
pad of a .bond Issue: (see bond payable in. No.te 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and Is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2019 arid 2018 was $176,298 arid $176,570, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with .this requirement. These amounts are Included iri restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organizatloh maintains a deposit account.on behalf of clients who participate: in
the. Guardianship Siervicjes Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the finariclal
stateinents as other current liabili.tle.s. The total current liability related to this
restrictibri at June "30, 2019 .and 2018 was $582,11.6 and $;378,.605, respectively,
these amounts are iricluded in other liabilities on the Staternents. of Financial
Position, the total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2019 and 2018
was $582,116 and $378,$05, re:sp;ectiyely. and is included in :the restrieted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

,At June 30. 2019, the O.rgariization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property .that Is held fbr sale at year end. Upon the ;sale of the property, it will be
donated to another .non-profit.^rganizatjori.

/

Certain cash accpurits related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are re.stri.cted:for
Certain, uses in the Organlzatlbri 'urider rules and regulations prescribed "by .the'
Departm.ent of Housing and Urban, Development. The total arnount restricted at
June 30, 20.19"and 2018 vyas $i79,'277:and $131,610, respectively. See Note 15.

note 4. INVENTORY

In 2019. and 2018, inventory included weatherization .riiaterials which had; been
purcha.sed in bulk. These Items are valued at the most recbnt .cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually;. Cp.st Is determined, using the firstTln. first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2019 a..nd 2018, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $65,886 arid $87,569, respectively.
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During the year ended June 30, 201.8, Ihe Organizatiph adopted the provisions of
the FASB Accounting Standard Update' (ASU) ̂OlS-tl, Inventory. {Topic 330);
Sinipljfying. the Measurement of Inventory., which sirhpHfies the subsequent
measurement of inventory by requiring inventory to be measured at'the, lower of
cosi or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of
inventory in the prdiriary course orbuslness, less reasonably predictable costs of
cornpletlbni disposal, and transportation. The' Organization has evaluated ASU
2015.-T1 arid has determined that there is no material Impact , to the financial
stateriTents".

NOTE 5. ACCRUED.EARNED TIIVtE

For the years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018, employees of the Organization vvere
eligible to accrue vacation for a rriaximurn of T60 hours. At June 30. 2019 and
26.18, the Organization luad accrued a liability for future annual .leave time that Its
employees had earned .and vested in the amount of $204,079 and $203;121.,
respectively.

•NOTE 6. PROPERTY
Property consists of the following at June,30, 2019:

Capitalized Ac.cumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book. Value,

Building $9,709,749 $'3,469,618 $6,240,131
Equipment 1,950.063 1 >08,917 241.146
iSoristructlbn

in progress 2;500 - 2,500
Land 423.840 ^ 423.840

^^.176,5?? S 6:907.617

Property consists of the follbwirig at June 30, 2018:
/

Capitalized Accurriulated Net
Cost Depreciatlori Book Value.

Buildirig $10,003,944 $3|44.8,4,11 :$.6.555;5.3.3
Equipment 2,384,905 1,754,91;3 629,992.
Land 423.840 ^ 423.840

The Organization has use of computers arid equipment which are the property pf
state and federal agencies .under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial staternents, is not included in the.Orgarilzatiori's
prpperiy and equipmeht totals.

20



DepreciatiQn expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$44:7.669 and $463,483, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2019 amounting to
$47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accdmpanyirig consolidated
statements, of financial position. The total loss on the write down .to market value of
this properly was $255,492.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM 6EBT
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 20,19 end 2018 consisted of
the foHovying:

2019 2018

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
ihstallments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. S.ecured by general business; assets. Fihal
iristailment'due January 2027: .$ 124,867 $. 138,-225

.Note payable, with a bank requiring 1-20. monthly

.installments of $3..03,3, including interest at 4.69®/o
per annum. .Secured by first mortgages on ,tvw>
commercial properties. Final installrrierit due April
:2021.. 328.396 349,131

Note payable, with a bank requiring 6.0 monthly
.installments of $459; including interest at 5% per
arinlirii. this 'note, was ah unsecured, jine of credit
that: was converted to a lertn loan dCirihg the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021., 9.618 14.500

tsiote payable to a financing corfipany requiring 72
monthly Installmerits-of ;$"312, including; interest at.
5.49% per annum. .S.ecured by the Organization's
vehicle,. Final installment .due August-2021, 7.642 10,874

Note, payable to a financing corripaoy requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, iricludirig interest at.
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Drganization's
vehicle" Tinal installment due July 2021.. 7,385 10.837

Note payable to firi'ancing company requiring 80
monthly installments of $143, Including interest at
5.99% per annuni. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Finaj installment due Npvember 2020.. 2,331 3,863
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Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly iristallmehts of $248, including interest at
6.10% per anriiirti. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023." 9,739 1.2,041

Note payable Vifllh a bank requiring 60 mpnthly
installments of $2,512,. in'cludinig iriteirest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is'due in
March 2023. 39.5,429 403.244

Bond payable .with a bank requiring rtiorithiy
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75.%
plus the bank's internal cost, of funds multiplied by
67% with an. indicative r:ate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final Insta.Hment due; August 20.40. 2,6.34.'595 2.719.260

Comerctohe Housihg North. Inc. capital advance
due to the Departrrierit of Housing arid Urban
Development. This capital advance is hot subject" to
intere.st.or principal amortization and .will be forgiven
after 40 yearsj or in August 2047. •1,617,600. 1.617.600

Comerctone' Housihg; North. Inc. mortgage payable
due: to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The. mortgage is not subject to interest, or principal
arnprtizatibn. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payrhehtidue ih AOgust 2047. 250.00G. 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs
5;388..162
.  fri.818V

5.529.375
f 12.7051

\

Total'long terrri debt
Less current portion.d.ue within one year

' 5:376,284
Y148.4491

5.516.670
f142.733V

$5,227,835 $.5.-373.937
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The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30. 2019 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 148,449

2021 437,624
.2022 123,156

2023 48;5.481
,2024 118,295

Thereafter 4.075.097

.As described at .No^ 3. the Organization is required to maintain a reserve-account
with a bank for the first two 'notes payable listed above.

NOTE S, CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
During the year ended June 30; 2016, the Organi^tipn jease.d a phorie system and
copier Cinder the teims. of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 arid March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30. 2017, the Company leased an
additional .copier under the tenjis of a capital le.ase; expiring in May .202-1. The
.assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recprded. at: the lower of the
present. yalCie of the minimum, lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
.assets: are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The. obligations Jncluded in capital leases-at June .30, .2dl9 and 2916, consisted of
•the..folIpvy|ng:

2019 2018

Lease, payable to: a financirtg company with
monthly ihstajlments; of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per arinum. The lease is secured
by the phorie. "system :arid will rriature in Nbverriber j
2020. $ 3..29i . $■ 5,362

Lease payable to a financing company with
hiphthjy Installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.'8'41% per annum. The lease Is
secured by a -Copier arid will mature in March
2Q21. 2.261 3.467
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Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly Installments of $122 for principal .and.
interest at 8.918% P.er annum. The lease ,1s
secured by a copier and. will mature in May 2p2'1. 2.673 3.842

8,225 T2-.671
Less, current portion (4.870) K445)

The scheduled maturities; of capital lease, obligations:as of June 30, 2019 were as
-follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 . $ 4,870
2021 3/355

£  8.225

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its prirn.ary financial
institution which is. secured by real estate mortgages arid assignments of l.eases
and rerits .on yanpus properties as disclosed in the line of credit: agreement.
Borrowings urider:the; line bear interest :at 5.00% per annum, and totaled $316,000
at June 30. 2018.There was no bajance outstanding at June 30, 20T9. The. line is
s.ubject:to. renewal each January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in "2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was riot
required to: make payments of interest or principal prior to maturify. At June 30,
2018, .the oufstandirig debt totaled $200,022^, which included accrued, interest of
$21,43'4. The unsecured re.volvirig line of credit was paid off lh, fu|| during the year
ended June 30; 2019.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Oiganization has entered Into numerous lease ctommitrherits for space.
Leases under no.n-cancelabfe. lease agreements have, various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of paym.ent and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has-
several facilities vvhich are leased on a. month to month basis. For^he years ended
J.une 3b, 2019- and 2018, the annual rent expense for leased, facilitie.s tot'ai.ed
$181,127 and $165,227, re.spe.ctively.
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Future minimum .lease" payments under nori-cancelabie operating lease's having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30. 2019, are as follows;

Years ending
June 30 Amount

-2020 .$ 147,778
■2021 65,003
2022 3.301

NOTE i 1. IN-KIND CONTRiBUTIONS.
The Organization' records the. value of In-kind contributions according to. the
accounting policy described in Note 1. the Head Start, trah'sportatioh and elder
programs, rely heay||y on ypluoteers who donate their services to: the. Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative, market, wage- 'for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the b.eneTtciary of a donation of in kind in the fdnrnof belovv
rnarket rent for sprne of the facilities utilized by the; Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the ih-kind rent. ,is recorded at the difference betw.ee.n the rental
payrrient ahd the.hffarket iate for the property based upon a receht appfalsal;.

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of'tirne to the activities .of
the Organization. The firiariciaj statements do npt reflect any^ value for these
donated services since, th'er'e is hp reliable basis for making a ireasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Tri-Cdunty Community Action Program, lo.c. receives, a majority of its. supporj. from
federal arid state gOvemnients. f^or the years ended June 30. 20.19 and .2018.
approximately $1:3,951,828. (^7%) arid. $13,773,803 (75%). respectively, of the
Organlzatibn's. total revenue was received from federal and s.tate governrhents.. If^a
slghrficarit reduction in the level pf support were to occur, it would have a significant
effect on the.drganization's pfograrnis arid activities.

Comerstone Housing Nprth, Inc.. receives a large majority of its :support. froro the
U.S. pepartment of Housing/and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30. 2019 arid 2018. approxlrriately 69% of the Organizations .total revenue was.
derived from the U.S. Departriierit of Housing and Urban Deyelppment.. In the
absence of edditibrial revenue sources^ the future existence of Comerstdne
Housing North. Inc. is dep.end.ent upon the funding policies of th'e.U.S., Department
of Housing and Urt>an Development.
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The majority of Cpmerstone Housing North, jnc.'s assets are apartment projects,
fbr-which operations are cpnGentrated if) the elderly person's real estate market. In
addilibn, the Organization.operates in a regulated enyirpnment. The operation of
the .Organization is, subject to admiriistrative directives, rules arid .regu[ations. of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies-,, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to chahge by ah
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such charges
may Occur with little notice or ihadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

•NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the-following specific program'
services as of June 30. 2019 arid 20.18:

2019 2018

Tempdrary Muhlcipal Funding
10 Bricks Sheiter'Funds

FAR

Restricted'Bulldings;
Support Center
Weatherizatioh

Loans - HSGP

FAP/EAP

RSVP Program Funds
Senior Meals

Head Start

Donations to; Maple Fund
Homeless Programs
USDA

Loans-HHARLF
IDN Capacity Fund
■Community l^eeds.Assessmeht.

$ 23t.161 .$ 2.12,2.07-
142,190'
117,470

8.7,541
25,"939
25.0Q0
19907
11,290

7.056
5,130
3.999
1-,571

142,190
136914
190,049

21,454;
23,249
.5.021

4,172:
1,586

27..680:
10,332
6,967

32.194
4.076

Total net assets with donor restrictions i  s 617 79-1

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES.

Grant Combllahce
The Qrganlzatiori receives funds under several federal and state grants.. Under the
terms of the grants the" Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictlohs. If the Organization was found to be
noncpmpljianl with the provisions of the grant agreements, the. Organizatlbri could
be liable to the gmntof or face discontinuation of funding.
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Ehvimnmehtal Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the. Organization's Boanii of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1..2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as ih'e East Wing and .West: Wing Buildings which
vyere: formerly used as a research and development facility for the. Berlin Mills
Company.

The. :exterior soil and interior parts of .the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required enyironrhental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012,. the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the-
Oep'artmerit) rioted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils arid parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to thO'Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted, that the contaminants; related to the. West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard, to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wirig Building is rnaintaihed to prevent further
structural deterioration.. If further detenoration- occurs and contaminants are.

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take addltiohai
action including containment arid remediation.

Loss Cdhtlnaehcles

During the year ended June 30,. 2018, legal actidris were brought against the
prganizatipn. Due to the.uncertalnty of the .outciome.bf such caseis as df June .30,
2019. as well as the u.ncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, ho am'ount
has been accrued by the iOfganization, at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RSERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulaipry agreement with HUD,, the
brgahization is required to set- aside amounts iritp a replacement reserve fpr the
replacement of prpperty, and bthef project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of-$129,407 and $106,548 were held ih a .segregated accoU.nt at
Jurie 30, 2019 and 2018; rpspectively. IHUP-restricted deposits generally are; nbt
aVailabie for operatihgpurpbses.:

Comprsione Housing North, Inc.'s .use of the residual receipts account is contingent
.upon: HUD'S prior written approval. Residual receipts of $46,514 and $21,326 were
held in a segregated account for the .years ended June. 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policieis to. recapture funds built up In residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assist'ahce contract. The iwjicies
djrect that the amounts, in excess .of certain limits,; in the: residuaf receipts; accPuht .be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, br(b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies genefally- require project owners to limit the nionies
accumulated in the residual receipts.account to $250 per unit;
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In accordance with the policy no.ted above, subsequent to year- end -the
Organization was required to remit funds tO:H,UP totaiihg $51.'412. In addition to the
funds refditted. HUD approved, the Organization, to withdraw $11.852 from the
resldiiai receipts accoiint.for equipment.

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial staternents are a.vailatsle to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events of transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements'.
Non-fecoghized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
.conditions that did not exist at the statem'ent of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent everitsi through October 21.
2pi 9, the date the financial statements were available, to be Issued.

28



s
|
|

I

5
.

s
s

^5

5
§
 
M

p
R

o0
»

g{
1
§

•
C
•

5(
=
 
2
 
=
wV

I?
8

8
8
,
8

8
8

8
w

^
 
#
0

A
o•
%

l
i
 

S
2
8
8

ill i
i
i
h

i|& iihe
6
6
,
8
 8
6
 6

Uo
 o

i
i
n

i
i
l
l

^
 
„

^
1

2
 s

£
 i

^
 8

I
 l
i

1
 I

I
I

 \
 
IG

P' '
 -i

w»

II f I
»
 

i
 
j

W
 

«
 

'
0

U
 
I
 I

13. 
-S 

i
8
 8
'
 
8
 
8

:tl i pij
:?i 

g Sj§®
d
-

3
 I
 

S
 
S
1
3

I
 1 

I III
•0 

j{'0' 
0
 
0
 0.0.

I
 
8

6
 •;j-

I
I3 J f

S
 ̂ I

i
 fi 
i
m
 

I
0

 1
0
 

0
'
 '
0
 0
 0
 

0
 
0
 
0

1
 11
 

I
 ilil' 

I
 i
 I

s
 
f

s
 si 

s ;SS| ■ i i
 i

8
 8
8
 

8
 -
8
8
8
 

8
 
8- 

Si

8
 
i

u

I
I

l
i

111:1

£
£
 

E

II 
I

0
 e
 

o

n
 

I
 s

tf If 
Sf 

S

II 
I
 
I

fi 
i f

I
I
 
1

1
^Afi 

A 
2

» 11i

t
t.

 S s§■?:
a<9<

! it If?
■

 11 I

t
i
l

: I
f I

I
 i I- i

S i.S



•rit>CQUKnrep>^;gW*g^»m>ait4M wc

SCHEOUL£'Of OroWlUlttS Of FCOOUi AWM03
fOW THt XtAA f>«pra JUWt M MM

fEDEfUI. CKAWTOIUMOCKAM nOE

W»fMrti»aon AiaanM ler tan ifKaww'POTora

■Total U.S. Oepenmeit tf.Eiwey

II t rwnentttew h» Waltiwi^ a*^ eommWn Aawtm
Ratirid M S«M WOtatMr Aegrw

Iota U.S. Corporatfen'lv ydCawwrty Sor^

U A Ow>*rtm»fiHi« AwtttitHW

OM vi4 AM Cm Food

Tctti U.S. Ocpmenm <t Agraaiau«

UJLAtftihBcaxUtaatttexlSssiKBi
EAMQancy Food A Sntflor Progtan (PEMA)

etwaV^cvMandganm Aamaw»»« Crano (FCi^-

Teia U.S. OtpetTwi d Homiiiina Snaity

il l. OwMWrwm et iMtte* .
OSm vwin AbiittnM (VOCA)

Scauaf Adsaui S«r*icM FcRMli ftogram (VSP)

Oyw TtOwfed AnHtarca MtadK*

real U.S. Ocpiannidii« Judea

UA PmWimifa it TrinwftOAatten
FontaAa Grirts lor ATMS (Sooicn 931II

TIUMSiT. SERlACeS FROCIUMS CLUSTCN
EMmpM MgtAy d Saiiien an) MMdt^
.CrAtnced MidStr ef.Sedon ard indMduM «aci Obadtlit» (M10 FOS: NCC)

U'S! OwartaiM'd TnnapoRaSen

UA&w»tm»wlatMaiw>nBafidt>*anDa.|>uuiiHLa
EawgencT Sdbdens Oani Freyani

CarOniaan d Can'lAagrm (HO^

ToM UJ Oeoantnan d Hewdng and iktan Oaidepwi

•FEDClUt
cfoa'

■ WU»8EW

.**jocn

10.9U

70413
n413'*

fASS-TMtOUCH
CAAKTOirawAag

FA»9-TmOUCH
QftANTOrS
twitn

FEOCRAL

Siaia d New Hampd^ Oewiw^ Oflka.d"CfNiTy A CemaOy SoMcei-

'Sttd d New HarvdM Ocdarum d EdueaOoi

07442 State d Maw Manctftfi Oetmrna o< 3a^

lt.979 .SUM'dNnHamoalweCeeeSvi'agaksi'OetwOeandSeMlVleNnea

16417 SatadfdwHarotfdeCeMenagalnuOeinesSeandSeatdviMrce

16426 Crafian Cetaey Ceiai

Sate d New HataeatiH Oepertmefe d TrmMdddvi

EEoooma

iiSRANHOOl

totis

euD-»i7.CP-<aoos>SDi

NOME

2017JV.AX40IO

OVW.2016-13629

Staa.d.^d* itaneidAa Oeimn d TtwiiacnaOdi
Stated New HaRvatdt.Oeeamwa d.Treiapertaslen

14411 StatadNeellaiiWA.eOepetwadMaaai MdiAaaenSanitdd

1A467' StaU'd New'HampdOra OtparOwd'Ad'iMBi and tAmao 9«r»<ca»

CtUsrCR TOTAA

103-900731

a*#eie<ieeei<ewe ■

.6 27a'iaa

•A misft

s es.93»

9 el939

123 BAi

1 121M1

i I0.-4OA

23.2«a

6 SiTOO

9 194.433

iriTa-

274S2

f 198.161

m.600

n.css'
931062
A3.031

t ■37i.TS1

r 67401

-I44.93?.

1 •Mm-



TWKMuwrr ct»tifwmf Atmew wtCKAM. we

KMCOXE Of DMLNOITUKU Of FtDQUL ATTJUtM
■WMTWTgAWgWPgO.RWgW.7011

FBXiui cKAirraiuwiioewAM-nTu

reociui.
cn>A fASS^TMROUCh

<»*wTeroitAOT

RAO$■notOUCH
OMMTOir*

HUWBtR
rgDERAt.

gToewomiRti

UJ.- PwHTtnwW rt l^htm

wiA/mOA curSTgR
mAVriOA Mia'Piepam.
WWAnnO|A OfoocoM werur f mua GrwRf

Teta U.S. DwwyTi el Ute

roTAL cxroromwEs of nseiUL aw amps

17.TM Swe«em.N^Hww*s:a*<kes.-^
17.^ Soaowm Nm Kweinlo SwA«*. inc.

"TOlMOO*
-»1»«Q04

cuaiwroTAL

)0.3SO
W.OM

•»t»*X1t7

HilTR A ♦ WARM Of WrTlgKrA^
THe iee»fiewi*iO idieeW.ej^wflendMWd ftflwwA»»iwnB»>.9eftiaRi>in«»aM Ho Udwaywo »c<»»ydTi*^Ccuiir.Cw"'i'"M*ty Acfcn Piopw. ne-wawgoormw n awfiOiiW wwiHwinte wWod A>t*» TDio! <T)w
Sdieciw k.Faaow h wwittno <^'»w lOjHinwiti of Tte 2 U.S.Cedii^:F«ow9 RogiMricrs Pwt 200i..Uitoei A<h**»*M-Aiot*wtiw«A Coa PrtictMt. 'mil Aid'Ara>im^ ly FMM Awwtb '(iMwm OJOmoX Wmo
gwonaqO|fiiWLlLrtBgOBndMapwWaaaT«*Cow«yCenmrKyAato»o9r«w.>i^»»ndrtwWWfo»i«iaB»inBlw»»^gwlnotijapeiWa«.,ci>Ai^>itwi«PiiB.wc»W»fbw»rfO»».&ywOatc«\.

HOTg B . tUHMARY OF tlCWgrAWT-ACgOUKTMP »<V

e»in6fc«e leponed en t« idMOM n report*! en M MCnof I*** ̂  Kcewtnp. SdOi wo'ticetWmi fclte >i||| Oil CM princHes CMMOO in.Ui^ GHttncA. vWortiti-eetM ly«o of ep***! wi M
winPinorMr*. IWiiW ■ m—i iftMiari aoRttiin li > ii i 1.-Jri—^1^:.-*. pi.

tiM*.-
»W Sctwduli.

WOrgC.WPWlCTWATg

TrtCarty CiAniMai Acfcn ̂ DQm lie. tat aheoa to n« wo M i»eeesr«<lo<lr**eidNa eeai rWtObwedwM.ew iWWiwi Q^Ioma



Leone, .
McDonnell
& Roberts

PVOFBSK^ ASSOCWnOX

c&RfiFironijiuo^^
•w6l jEBORO-*. KOlml•CO^TOl•

INC. DQVEK r'GONMROi
■  'MUmV:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL^GVER.FINANCIAL
REPORTING And on ebMRLIANCE'AND OTHER MATTERS:BASEb ON-

AN AUDIT OF-'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.PERFORMED
IN ACGbRDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of-
Tri-Cbunty: Gornmunily Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Harnpshii^

■VVe have-audited. m:accprdance withUh'e auditing vStandards .gehe.rall]^ accepted'.ih'th'e:Uhited Statesyof
Amenca. and the' standard's..appllcable ;to; financial audits: contained in Government -Auditing Standards
Issued by the lOomplroller Oeheral of the. United States, the financial .statements of tri-Gbunty
C^mriiuciity'Action:Program., Inc. :(a nonprofitiorganizalion), which comprise ther.statement of finandal
position as: of June.^, '2pl9. and the;reiated statements of .actiyities,'functiohai'expehs.es and cash
ftoyys: for-the year then ended, and the; ̂ elated: notes :to the financial, statemerits. and have issued our
report th;ere]Qh dated. C^ldber 2.1. 20i9..

Ihterhat Control Over Financial Reporting
in planningtand performing ourau'di.t prim.e'(^ns.piidaie.d financialsta.tern.ents, we considered Tri-Cib.urity
Community Action .iProgrem .Inc.'s internal contrpi ;oyer financial reporting (iriteriial icontrbl) .tb.-dete'rmihe:
the audit: pro(^dU(es :thai :a;re apprppnate. in the drcum'stances' for ;the purpose; of expressing our
opinion on; the-consolidated .firfahdai. slaternenls', but-not fbr'the putppee :of ejipressingjan opinion .on
the effebti^ness .of; TrirCbunty Community Action" Program l.nc:*s iritern.ai -^n]^!.. -A.ccOrdtnglyi we dp'
not express ;an ppirilpn" on; the effectiveness of Trl-Couniy Community Action: Prograrh .inc.-s. ihterhat
control.

A.ide/icVehcy in ihtemal control exists when the :desi9ri or operation of a .ppntr^gi does :hot Sliow
management or ernplpyees, in'tb.b .norrnal qOurse ofp'e'rfonnlhg their asslgned fU'nctions-i.-to prevent, or
detect, and correct, .misstaternpnts o.h a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
tcornbination .of..deficiendesw1h''iht.e;mal,cdhtrol. scich thaf'therais a.reasonable.possibility-.th'at a mate'iial
misstatenient'pf. the>e'ntity<$-:finahdal statemeHts .will not be. prevented.- or detected and corrected on id.
■'tihiely- basis.. A.'sighifi'cahi' deficldricy is a :defi'c|en.cy-. or a.cp.mbinatlon ..of deficiencies, in .l.ri'terhai control,
that Is less severe tha.i} a. m.a3.erlaT.weakness,- yet importbhi enough to rnerit attehtibh by those, charged
'wth gp.veiTiance:

Qur cbhsideratlb'h bf 'int'efn'al control was for the' limited purpose described Iri the; first pa.ragraph of thi.S'
:section: -and- ̂ waa not deslghed' :to- -identify ali' deficiencies in intergai .cpnlrpi Ih.al; might -ie hri'atbrial
weaknesses\Qr significant:defici.e.ncies:.-Giv.en' these iirfiitaiibn's, durin'g;.bur audit we did not-identify-any
deficiencies in inte'rha! corttrbl. that' we cbhSlder tb be material weaknesses'. However,, material
weaknesses may^existithat have.;not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about, whether Tri-Cbunty Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are fre.e from- material mlsstatement, w.'e perfo'rrtied tests of !ilis compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant, agreements, noncpmpliance with" which
•could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement
amounts.; However, providing an opinion on c.oiTip.liance with those provisions was. not an. objective'of
.our -audit, and accordingly, we. do not express such an opinion. The results of oUr-tests disclosed ho
instances of noncornpliance or other matters (hat .are required to be repotted under Government
Auditing $tandards,

Purpose of this Report

The. purpose of this report is solely to describe (he scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results pf that testing, and not to provide. :an opinion on the effectivehess of the
organization's internal .control or on cohnpijance. This report Is an integral part of an audit pertormed In
accordance with Government Auditing '.Standards In considering the organization's Internal ,control ahd
compliance. Accordingly, this'co.mmunication is not suitable for any oth'er purpose.

October 21. 2019
North Gonway. New Hampshire
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TRUCQUNTY'CQMMUNITY ACTION program: iKiC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR ̂ CH MAJOR RROGRAM.AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE 'REQUIRED BY TNE UNlFORMOOlDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-Couhty Cornmunily Action Program, Inc.
.Berlin, New Harnp'shire

Report on CorripUancie for Each iMjaJpr:Federai Rrogfam
•We have^audited Tri^uhtyComrnuhityAclldn Program Ihc.'sxompllance with the-typesxf compliance
requirernehts. described in .the. -QMS-'eo/Tip//8nce Supplement thai could have .a-.direclf ahd .rhateiial
effect oh each- of Tri-County Cornmunity Action Program .Inc.-.'s rnajOr federal prograriis: .fbr .the year
ended Jurie- 30.: 2019. Tfl-Qounty pbmrhunity Action Program ihc.''s major federal prdgrarns are
identified- i.n the s.urnrnary^of audj.tora? results section df'the accompanying schedule of-findings -ar^
questioned costs..

Management's.Responsibility
Management IS'responsible for confipjlance withih'exe'du.irem^^ laws, xegulalldhs. contractSi ̂ and
grants;applica.bl.e to Its fed.eral.p

Auditors' Responsltiiliiy.
Odr' respohsibillfy. iS; to express an opinion on compliance 'for each of'Tri-Gounty Comrfiunity Actioh
Program Incr's major fede.ral. programs: based on our audit of the types of .cofnpllahce requirements
referred :tb abpye. We cohductied .our audit: of compliance. Ih' accordance with auditing slaodarcls.
^gerierally- accepted Ih the. United Slates of- -Americaf the" standards .'appliMbfe' to ;fih.ariciai. aO'dilS-
contained in Gbverrimen/ Auditing Standards, issued :by' the Gom.ptroller d'erieral of. th'e- United States:;
-and- the- aydil- requirem.erits of Title. 2 U..S. Code of Federal Regulations "Part 200, .Uriiforrn.
.A' dministrative Requirements, dost prihciples, and' Audit. Requirements: for Federal -Awards (Uniform
Guldancej..'nhos'e (Standards'and-Urtiform iGuldance require that, we plan and perform the: audit-to.
obtain feasbhable assurance aboih whether rtqpc^mpli.ance'with the types of qprnplianc'e.requirements:
referred torabove that could have-a direcl'.and ma'teriai effect on' a'.m'ajbffeberai.pfOgram Occurred. An
.audit includes .e)rami.nlng,.o.n a.test basis, evidence.about Tri-'Courity Community. Action' Program lrlc.-'s
compliance with those requirements .and perfbrming such other- procedures as vye considered"
.necessary in the.,circumstances.

'We. believe that pur a.udit; provides- a reasonable'- basis for'ibur opinlbh oh Cdmpliahce for each major
federal program. However, our'audit does-riOfprbvide-.a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Acilon Program" Inc.'s compliarice.
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Opinion oh Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Tri-Gounty Gommunlty Action Pro^rain, Inc. complied," In all material respects, -with the
types of compliance, requirements referred lb above that could have a.direct and material effect'On.each
of its major federal programs for thp year ended June 30, 20lk •

Report on Internal Control over Compliance'
Management of Tri-Courily Cbmmuhity Action Program. Inc. i.S' responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective, internal control oyer compliance- with the types of compliance requirements
.referred, to above. In planning" and perfo'itning our .audit of compljence. we considered Tri-Courity
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal" control over compliance wiih; the types of requirerhehts that
could have a direct and material effect on each" major federal program to determine the ̂ auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpojse of expressing an opiWion on
compliance fbr each major federal program and .to test and repOri oriTnlernal corilrbl over compliance'In
accordance with Uniform Guidance; but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the'
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on ;the.
effectiveness of Tri-Gounty Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance:

A deficiency in internal controi over compliance exists when the. design .or operation of a cbntrot over
compliance does npil allow management, of em'pldyees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned .functions, to preverit, of detect and cprrecf,- noncompHance with -a type of compliance
requirement of a federal prograrn on .a timely basis. A material' wdalchess In internal control over
compliance, is a deficiency, or Combinatiori of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there .Is a re'asbnable possibility that material noncompljance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or delected arid coffecled. on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal c'dritrol over corhpliance is a deficiency, or "a comblriatibn of deficiencies, ih
ihtefrial control'over-compliance wllh;a type of .cpmpllarice'requirement of a .federal program thaliis.less
severe than a material weakness in ihterrial. control over compliance, yet importent enough to merit
•atte'ritiori by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was fpr the limited purpose desaibed in .thC'first
paragraph of this; :sectio.rt and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in' ihlerna! corilrol.o.ver
compliance that rnight be material weaknesses- or significant deficiericies; We did not Identiiv any
d.efidericies in iritefrial 'Contrbl oyer compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
materiar weaknesses may exist thai have not been!identlfied.

The. purpose of this report on Internal contrpl oyer compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of Intem.al control o.ver compliahce arid the' results of that.testi.hg based on .the requirements of
.Uniform Guidance; .Accordingly,•this-repotl is not suit8ble fo.r;any other;purpbse.

October-21,.2019
North Cpnway. New Hampshire
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR-ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on (he financial statements of Tri»C6unty
Community Action Program. Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of'the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report-on Iriterhsii Control, pv^ Financial Refydriirig and on 'Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of .Financial Btatemehts Perfdrrhed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

•3. No instances' of noncomp'liarice rhatertal to the financial statements of Tri^Coun'ly Community
Action Program. Inc. which would be required to be reported In accordance vwth Government
Auditing Standards, were <i'\sc\ose6 .dunng the audit

4. No significant" deficiencies in internal control .over rna]orfederal,:award programs during the audit
are. reported in the" Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance: for Each Major Program and
on liiternal Control gyer Cpn?pliance Accordance with .th e'. Uniform Guidance,

5" The auditpra" report pn compliance for the major federal avyard programs for Tri-County
Commuhity Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodi.fied opinion on all major programs.

6. No. audit findings that:are required to be reported in accordance with; 2 CFR 200.5t6(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP -CFDA.#93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services,. Head Start - CFDA #93.600

.U.S. Dept. of Energy, Weatherization Assistance for Low Income individuals - CFDA
#81.042

8'. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B. programs was- $750,000:'

9: "Trl-County.^mrnunliy Action Program, inc. was detemhined to.be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS -FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS AUDIT

None;

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- MAJOR FEDERAL AVVARD PROiGRA:MS AUDIT

None.
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